
C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org           www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 
 
 

PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 

 
Date: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 
Time: 6:00 PM 
Place: Remote Virtual Participation Only 
 
Meeting Access:  
 
Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/91707224769 or call (253) 215-8782  or (346) 248-7799  
ID:  917 0722 4769 
 
NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Based on guidance from the California Department of Public Health and the California Governor’s 
Stay at Home Executive Order N-33-20 issued on March 19, 2020, to protect the health and well-
being of all Californians and to establish consistency across the state in order to slow the spread of 
COVID-19, the Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission meeting will not provide in-person 
participation at this time.   
 
The following alternative methods of participation are available to the public.  If you wish to make a 
general public comment or to comment on a specific agenda item, the following methods are 
available: 
 

• Distribution to the Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission – Submit your comment 
via e-mail prior to 5:00 p.m. one day prior to the meeting.  Please submit your comment to 
redistricting@countyofsb.org.  Your comment will be placed in the record and distributed 
appropriately. 

• Participation via Zoom meeting link listed above. See Instructions on next page. 
• Participation via telephone by calling in with the phone number and webinar code listed above. 

 
Recordings of the Commission Meetings, Agendas, Supplemental Materials and Minutes of the 
Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission are available on the internet at: 
www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc  
 
Language interpretation and requests for disability-related modification or accommodation, including 
auxiliary aids or devices, may be arranged by emailing a request to redistricting@countyofsb.org at 
least 24 hours prior to the Commission meeting.  
 
Para solicitar traducción del idioma o una modificación por discapacidad, incluso los soportes 
auxiliares y los dispositivos, se puede mandar un correo electrónico a redistricting@countyofsb.org  
al menos 24 horas antes de la reunión de la Comisión. 
 

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITIZENS INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION 

mailto:redistricting@countyofsb.org
https://zoom.us/j/91707224769
mailto:redistricting@countyofsb.org
http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc
mailto:redistricting@countyofsb.org
mailto:redistricting@countyofsb.org


County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Agenda for June 2, 2021 
Page | 2 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

Instructions for Public Comment in Virtual Public Meetings  Under current Public Health 
Officer Order prohibiting indoor gatherings, the Santa Barbara County Independent Redistricting 
Commission (CIRC) will conduct virtual public meetings using Zoom. Attendees can participate 
without a Zoom account. 

• Attendees can link via computer or smart device, through the Zoom app (available for IOS 
and Android), or by cell phone or landline.  

• Each meeting agenda will be posted 72 hours in advance at  
www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc (unless greater notice is required by law) and include 
the Zoom link, phone numbers and the Webinar I.D. to join electronically or by phone. To 
participate in Public Comment, please refer to directions below.  

• Submit comments via e-mail to redistricting@countyofsb.org prior to 5:00 p.m. on the day 
preceding the meeting. Your comment will be placed in the record and distributed 
appropriately. 
 
1. Public Comment Via Computer or iPhone/Android App: 

o To indicate that you wish to speak during Public Comment, select “raise your 
hand” feature and staff will know to call on you. When called upon, please state 
your name for the record. We reserve the right to mute a microphone for profane, 
harassing or offensive language; or for speaking beyond the time limit set by the 
Chair.  

o Smart phone users with the Zoom app can also select the “raise your hand” 
feature. 
 

2. Public Comment Via Phone:  
o Attendees by phone can “raise your hand” by pressing star-9. When it is your 

turn to speak, we will announce you by caller I.D. or your phone number. When 
called upon, please state your name for the record. We reserve the right to mute a 
microphone for profane, harassing or offensive language; or for speaking beyond 
the time limit set by the Chair.  

For more information about joining a Zoom Webinar, go to https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-
us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting.  
 
  

http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc
mailto:redistricting@countyofsb.org
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-meeting


County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Agenda for June 2, 2021 
Page | 3 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

Commission Members: Commissioner Cheryl Trosky, First District 
  Commissioner Karen Twibell, First District 
  Commissioner William McClintock, Second District 
  Commissioner Megan Turley, Second District, Vice Chair 
  Commissioner Norman “Doug” Bradley, Third District  
  (Vacant), Third District 
  Commissioner James Bray, Fourth District 
  Commissioner Amanda Ochoa, Fourth District 
  Commissioner Glenn Morris, Fifth District, Chair 
  Commissioner Jannet Rios, Fifth District 
  Commissioner Kathryn Adams, Member-At-Large 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2. Commissioner disclosure of ex parte communications pursuant to County Ordinance Code Sec. 

2-10.9A(5)(h) are posted on the commission website at www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc. 
 
3. Community-Based Organizations for Outreach Information 
 To submit the name of a community-based organization that the Commission should consider 

contacting with outreach information, visit www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc.  Please 
review the existing the "suggest outreach" list; and, if the organization is not already listed, 
submit public contact information for the organization using the outreach form.  Questions, 
suggestions, or other information can be emailed to redistricting@countyofsb.org. 

 
4. Public Comment 

The Public Comment period is reserved for comments on items not on the Agenda and for matters 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission. The 
Commission may adopt reasonable regulations, including time limits, on public comments. The 
Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during the public comment 
section, except to decide whether to place a matter on the agenda of a future meeting. 
 

5. Approval of Minutes of May 12 and 19, 2021. 
 
6. Receive and file letter of resignation submitted by Benjamin Olmedo, Former Third District 

Commissioner. 
 
7. Commission applicant interviews to fill the Third District vacancy. 
 
8. Discussion, deliberation, and possible action regarding the commissioner appointment for the 

Third District Commissioner and administer oath of office. 
 
9. Training 7:  Outreach presentations, talking points, website, and marketing materials.  Review 

by legal counsel on the Ralph M. Brown Act, including ex parte disclosures, social media 
communications, and communications with the press. 

 

http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1UJ1ySGqbuCHCzBUmmmucxcie9jwBxhYizM6NtskKzVE/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1_O68kwmgiV6H3eKAw1-3uuN49dk6N49P3hWUL9MHvcY/edit?usp=sharing
mailto:redistricting@countyofsb.org


County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Agenda for June 2, 2021 
Page | 4 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

10. Discussion and possible action regarding future agenda items. 
 
RECESS FOR CLOSED SESSION 
 
11. Conference with Legal Counsel—Existing Litigation 
 Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9 
 

Name of case: The Coalition of Labor, Agriculture & Business of Santa Barbara County v. 
Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors; County of Santa Barbara Citizens’ Independent 
Redistricting Commission, Frederic D. Woocher; Strumwasser & Woocher, LLP; Case 
No. 21CV01642 

 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
12. Announcement of any reportable action taken in closed session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Agenda Packet Items: 
Item 07 Interview Schedule 
Item 07 Interview Questions 
Item 07 Candidate Applications 
Item 10 Proposed Future Agenda Items 
Item 11 Mark P. Meuser of Dhillon Law Group Inc., COLAB 
 



C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org           www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 
 
 

Summary of Proceedings 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 

 
Date: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 
Time: 7:00 PM – 8:31 PM 
Place: Remote Virtual Participation Only 

 
Recordings of the Commission Meetings, Agendas, Supplemental Materials and Minutes of the 
Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission are available on the internet at: 
www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc  

 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 
 
1. Commission Convened 
 
 Roll Call 
 Commissioners Present:  Bradley, Bray, McClintock, Morris, Ochoa, Olmedo, Rios, Trosky, 

Turley, Twibell 
 
 Commissioners Absent:  None 
 
CHAIR MORRIS EXPLAINED THAT AGENDA ITEM 2 AND 3 ARE INFORMATIONAL 
ITEMS. 
 
2. Commissioner disclosure of ex parte communications pursuant to County Ordinance Code Sec.  

2-10.9A(5)(h) are posted on the commission website at www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc. 
 
3. Community-Based Organizations for Outreach Information 
 To submit the name of a community-based organization that the Commission should consider 

contacting with outreach information, visit www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc. Please 
review the existing the "suggest outreach" list; and, if the organization is not already listed, 
submit public contact information for the organization using the outreach form. Questions, 
suggestions, or other information can be emailed to redistricting@countyofsb.org.  

 
4. Public Comment 
 The Public Comment period is reserved for comments on items not on the Agenda and for 

matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Citizens Independent Redistricting 
Commission. The Commission may adopt reasonable regulations, including time limits, on 
public comments. The Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during 
the public comment section, except to decide whether to place a matter on the agenda of a future 
meeting.  

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITIZENS INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION 

about:blank
about:blank
http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc


County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 12, 2021 
Page | 2 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
LAWANDA LYONS-PRUITT, SANTA MARIA & LOMPOC NAACP, HEARD REGARDING 
DIVERSITY, PEOPLE OF COLOR, LATINX AND POLITICAL PARTY REPRESENTATION. 
 
LINDSEY BAKER, SANTA BARBARA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS, HEARD 
REGARDING POLITICAL PARTY REPRESENTATION. 
 
GERARDO GONZALEZ, HEARD (THROUGH A SPANISH INTERPRETER) REGARDING 
THE NEED FOR HISPANIC REPRESENTATION FOR GUADALUPE RESIDENTS, AND IN 
SUPPORT OF LUPE ALVAREZ. 
 
JOE PIERRE, SANTA BARBARA DEMOCRATIC CENTRAL COMMITTEE VICE CHAIR, 
HEARD REGARDING DEMOCRATIC PARTY UNDERREPRESENTATION AND OPPOSES 
APPOINTING ANOTHER REPUBLICAN TO THE COMMISSION. 
 
ANDY CALDWELL, HEARD REGARDING THE ORDINANCE, POLITICAL PARTY 
AFFILIATION, PARTISANSHIP AND CANDIDATE SELECTION. 
 
PHILIP SEYMOUR, HEARD REGARDING POLITICAL PARTY AFFILIATION, CANDIDATE 
SELECTION, AND MR. CALDWELL’S COMMENT. 

LEE, HEARD REGARDING MR. CALDWELL’S COMMENT, AND POLITICIZING THE 
DISCUSSION. 

WRITTEN COMMENT: 

PHILIP SEYMOUR, REPRESENTING THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY DEMOCRATIC 
CENTRAL COMMITTEE, WROTE REGARDING THE ORDINANCE AND ITS 
REQUIREMENTS THAT A DEMOCRAT BE SELECTED TO FILL THE VACANCY. 

KIMMIS BRADY, WROTE REGARDING THE SANTA YNEZ NORTH COUNTY BE DRAWN 
AS ITS OWN RURAL DISTRICT. 

KATHY GRACE-VELASQUEZ, WROTE HOPING THAT THE DISTRICT 3 BOUNDARIES 
ARE CHANGED. 

ANDY CALDWELL, TRANSMITTED A COPY OF ROBERT MERCADO’S OP ED 
REGARDING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS AND RACE. 

ROBIN SERRITSLEV, WROTE HOPING THAT THE DISTRICT 3 BOUNDARIES ARE 
CHANGED. 
 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 12, 2021 
Page | 3 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

 
5. Commission applicant interviews to fill the at-large position. (Note: Additional interviews will 

be held May 19, 2021) 
 
CHAIR MORRIS GAVE AN OVERVIEW OF THE INTERVIEW PROCESS, AND STATED 
THAT APPLICANTS HAVE A 3 MINUTE MAXIMUM TIME LIMIT TO ANSWER EACH 
QUESTION.  HE ANNOUNCED THAT APPLICANT KEVIN ILAC IS CONSIDERED A 
CANDIDATE, WILL NOT BE REINTERVIEWED, AND INSTEAD HIS DECEMBER 9, 2020 
INTERVIEW WILL BE USED.  THE APPLICANT INTERVIEWS WILL CONCLUDE ON MAY 
19, 2021, AND FOLLOWING THE DISCUSSION, A COMMISSIONER WILL BE APPOINTED. 
 

QUESTION #1 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER BRAY (DISTRICT 4) 
• WHY DO YOU WANT TO SERVE ON THE REDISTRICTING COMMISSION? 

 
QUESTION #2 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER RIOS (DISTRICT 5) 
• GIVEN THE COMMISSION'S SEATED MEMBERS, AND WHAT YOU KNOW ABOUT 

THEIR BACKGROUNDS AND SKILL SETS, COULD YOU HIGHLIGHT ELEMENTS 
OF YOUR PERSONAL BACKGROUND, EXPERIENCES, SKILLS, AND KNOWLEDGE 
OF SANTA BARBARA COUNTY THAT YOU THINK WILL ADD TO THE 
OVERALL DIVERSITY OF THE COMMISSION? 

 
QUESTION #3 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER TROSKY (DISTRICT 1) 
• HOW WOULD YOU HELP THE COMMISSION TO DRAW LINES THAT PROMOTE 

“COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST?” 
 

QUESTION #4 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER TWIBELL (DISTRICT 1) 
• COULD YOU DESCRIBE A PROJECT OR OTHER EXPERIENCE IN WHICH YOU 

HAD TO COLLABORATE WITH A GROUP OF INDIVIDUALS IN ORDER TO REACH 
A COMMON GOAL? WHEN YOU DISAGREED WITH OTHERS, HOW DID YOU 
HANDLE THOSE DISAGREEMENTS? 

 
QUESTION #5 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER BRADLEY (DISTRICT 3) 
• HOW DO YOU THINK THE COMMISSION SHOULD ADDRESS THE PROBLEM OF 

PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ON REDISTRICTING TO HELP 
ENCOURAGE BROAD PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMISSION'S WORK?  WHAT 
ARE SOME IDEAS YOU HAVE FOR THE COMMISSION TO SOLICIT PUBLIC INPUT 
ON THE REDISTRICTING PROCESS, AND METHODS OF PUBLIC OUTREACH TO 
ENSURE TRANSPARENCY?  

 
THE COMMISSIONERS INTERVIEWED APPLICANT GERALD DeWITT. 
 
THE COMMISSIONERS INTERVIEWED APPLICANT LUPE ALVAREZ. 
 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 12, 2021 
Page | 4 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

RECESSED THE MEETING AT 7:54 PM.  THE MEETING RECONVENED AT 7:59 PM. 
THE COMMISSIONERS INTERVIEWED APPLICANT MICHAEL HARTMAN. 
 
CHAIR MORRIS ANNOUNCED THAT PUBLIC COMMENT FOR APPLICANT INTERVIEWS 
WILL OCCUR AFTER THE INTERVIEWS ON MAY 19. 
 
6. Discussion and possible action regarding future training sessions and other future agenda items. 

 
• HOW COMMISSIONERS SHOULD RESPOND TO PUBLIC INQUIRIES (MAY 19) 
• OUTREACH UPDATE (MAY 19) 

 
CHAIR MORRIS REQUESTED THE DRAFT CALENDAR BE SENT TO APPLICANTS.  MRS. 
TILTON STATED THE DRAFT CALENDAR WILL BE INCLUDED IN THE MAY 19 AGENDA 
PACKET AND EMAILED TO THE APPLICANTS. 
 
COMMISSIONER TROSKY ASKED ABOUT REPLYING TO PUBLIC COMMENTS.  MS. 
ORDIN STATED THAT THE COUNTY ORDINANCE DIFFERS FROM STATE STATUTE, 
AND RECOMMENDED HANDLING IT AS YOU WOULD EX PARTE COMMUNICATION, 
AND ALSO REFERENCED THE BROWN ACT.  
 
COMMISSIONER OLMEDO COMMENTED ABOUT THE IMPORTANCE OF THE ASIAN 
PACIFIC ISLANDER VOICE, UNFORESEEN NAVAL REQUIREMENTS THAT MAY 
REQUIRE HIM TO BE GONE MORE THAN INITIALLY THOUGHT, POSSIBLE 
RESIGNATION, AND BROADER REPRESENTATION. 

 
ADJOURNMENT – The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 19, 2021, at 6 p.m. 
 
Agenda Packet Items:  
Item 05 Interview Schedule   
Item 05 Interview Questions   
Item 05 Candidate Applications   
 



C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org           www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

Summary of Proceedings 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 

Date: Wednesday, May 19, 2021 
Time: 6:04 PM – 9:55 PM 
Place: Remote Virtual Participation Only 

Recordings of the Commission Meetings, Agendas, Supplemental Materials and Minutes of the 
Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission are available on the internet at: 
www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc  

BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

1. Commission Convened

Roll Call
Commissioners Present:  Bradley, Bray, McClintock, Morris, Olmedo, Rios, Trosky, Turley,
Twibell

Commissioners Absent:  Ochoa (Excused)

CHAIR MORRIS EXPLAINED THAT AGENDA ITEM 2 AND 3 ARE INFORMATIONAL 
ITEMS. 

2. Commissioner disclosure of ex parte communications pursuant to County Ordinance Code Sec.
2-10.9A(5)(h) are posted on the commission website at www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc.

3. Community-Based Organizations for Outreach Information
To submit the name of a community-based organization that the Commission should consider
contacting with outreach information, visit www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc. Please
review the existing the "suggest outreach" list; and, if the organization is not already listed,
submit public contact information for the organization using the outreach form. Questions,
suggestions, or other information can be emailed to redistricting@countyofsb.org.

4. Public Comment
The Public Comment period is reserved for comments on items not on the Agenda and for
matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Citizens Independent Redistricting
Commission. The Commission may adopt reasonable regulations, including time limits, on
public comments. The Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during
the public comment section, except to decide whether to place a matter on the agenda of a future
meeting.

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITIZENS INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION 

about:blank
about:blank
http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc


County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 2 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

LEE HELLER, HEARD REGARDING GUADALUPE AND CARPINTERIA 
REPRESENTATION. 

JOSE LEON, HEARD (VIA TRANSLATION BY COMMISSIONER RIOS) IN SUPPORT OF 
LUPE ALVAREZ. 

GABE ESCOBEDO, HEARD REGARDING LATINO REPRESENTATION, AND SUGGESTED 
APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE. 
 
JESUS MORALES, HEARD (VIA TRANSLATION BY COMMISSIONER RIOS) REGARDING 
CONCERNS OF REPRESENTATION OF SMALL CITIES, AND IN SUPPORT OF LUPE 
ALVAREZ. 
 
GERARDO GONZALEZ, HEARD (VIA TRANSLATION BY COMMISSIONER RIOS) IN 
SUPPORT OF APPOINTING LUPE ALVAREZ. 
 
CLIFF SOLOMON, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF KATE ADAMS, AND IN FAVOR OF 
APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE. 
 
LATA MURTI, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE. 
 
WALLY, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE. 
 
IAN BAUCKE, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE, AND 
THE SELECTION PROCESS. 
 
KATHY HOWARD, HEARD IN AGREEMENT WITH THE PREVIOUS SPEAKER, AND IN 
SUPPORT OF APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE. 
 
TERI DOUTNEY, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF APPOINTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE. 
 
ANDY CALDWELL, HEARD REGARDING LEGAL COUNSEL SELECTION. 
 
JESUS RAMIREZ (NO RESPONSE WHEN CALLED UPON). 
 
CHAIR MORRIS ANNOUNCED PUBLIC COMMENT WILL ALSO BE HEARD AFTER THE 
CANDIDATE INTERVIEWS. 
 
WRITTEN COMMENT: 
 
JULIAN ARISTON, MAYOR OF GUADALUPE, WROTE IN SUPPORT OF LUPE ALVAREZ. 
 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 3 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

NADIA LEE ABUSHANAB, WROTE IN SUPPORT OF KATHRYN ADAMS. 
 
CHARLES BELL, HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, WROTE IN SUPPORT OF LUPE 
ALVAREZ TO FILL THE VACANCY. 
 
LORRAINE WALDAU, LOMPOC VALLEY DEMOCRATS, WROTE URGING THE 
COMMISSION TO REFLECT POLITICAL BALANCE. 
 
5. Approval of Minutes of May 5, 2021. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF MAY 5, 2021. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:    9   AYES        1   ABSENT 
 
6. Commission applicant interviews to fill the at-large position. (Note: Additional interviews were  

held May 12, 2021) 
 
CHAIR MORRIS MENTIONED THE INTERVIEW OF GERALD DeWITT, LUPE ALVAREZ 
AND MICHAEL HARTMAN ON MAY 5, AND THAT CANDIDATE KEVIN ILAC IS A 
CANDIDATE, WAS NOT REINTERVIEWED, AND INSTEAD HIS DECEMBER 9, 2020 
INTERVIEW WILL BE CONSIDERED. 
 
CANDIDATE KEVIN KASEFF IS LISTED ON THE SCHEDULE, HOWEVER, HAS DECLINED 
TO BE INTERVIEWED.  KATHRYN ADAMS IS THE ONLY CANDIDATE THAT WILL BE 
INTERVIEWED. 
 
CHAIR MORRIS GAVE AN OVERVIEW OF THE PROCESS AND MENTIONED THE 
QUESTIONS WILL BE POSED IN ORDER BY THE SAME COMMISSIONERS AS THE MAY 
5 INTERVIEWS. 
 

QUESTION #1 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER BRAY (DISTRICT 4) 
• WHY DO YOU WANT TO SERVE ON THE REDISTRICTING COMMISSION? 

 
QUESTION #2 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER RIOS (DISTRICT 5) 
• GIVEN THE COMMISSION'S SEATED MEMBERS, AND WHAT YOU KNOW ABOUT 

THEIR BACKGROUNDS AND SKILL SETS, COULD YOU HIGHLIGHT ELEMENTS 
OF YOUR PERSONAL BACKGROUND, EXPERIENCES, SKILLS, AND KNOWLEDGE 
OF SANTA BARBARA COUNTY THAT YOU THINK WILL ADD TO THE 
OVERALL DIVERSITY OF THE COMMISSION? 

 
QUESTION #3 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER TROSKY (DISTRICT 1) 
• HOW WOULD YOU HELP THE COMMISSION TO DRAW LINES THAT PROMOTE 

“COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST?” 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 4 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

 
QUESTION #4 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER TWIBELL (DISTRICT 1) 
• COULD YOU DESCRIBE A PROJECT OR OTHER EXPERIENCE IN WHICH YOU 

HAD TO COLLABORATE WITH A GROUP OF INDIVIDUALS IN ORDER TO REACH 
A COMMON GOAL? WHEN YOU DISAGREED WITH OTHERS, HOW DID YOU 
HANDLE THOSE DISAGREEMENTS? 

 
QUESTION #5 – ASKED BY COMMISSIONER BRADLEY (DISTRICT 3) 
• HOW DO YOU THINK THE COMMISSION SHOULD ADDRESS THE PROBLEM OF 

PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ON REDISTRICTING TO HELP 
ENCOURAGE BROAD PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMISSION'S WORK?  WHAT 
ARE SOME IDEAS YOU HAVE FOR THE COMMISSION TO SOLICIT PUBLIC INPUT 
ON THE REDISTRICTING PROCESS, AND METHODS OF PUBLIC OUTREACH TO 
ENSURE TRANSPARENCY?  

 
THE COMMISSIONERS INTERVIEWED CANDIDATE KATHRYN “KATE” ADAMS. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
JESUS RAMIREZ, GUADALUPE RESIDENT, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE 
ADAMS, AND OPPOSES APPOINTING LUPE ALVAREZ. 
 
MS. SOLIS, PLANNED PARENTHOOD CENTRAL COAST ACTION FUND, HEARD IN 
SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS. 
 
LAWANDA LYONS-PRUITT, SANTA MARIA LOMPOC NAACP, HEARD REGARDING 
CONCERNS ABOUT DIVERSITY AND PARTY PREFERENCE, AND IN FAVOR OF 
APPOINTING A DEMOCRAT OVER A REPUBLICAN LATINX CANDIDATE. 
 
KATHY SHARUM, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS. 
 
LATA MURTI, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS. 
 
REBECA GARCIA, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS. 
 
LEE HELLER, HEARD REGARDING THE ORDINANCE AND THE SELECTION PROCESS, 
SELECTING A DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATE, AND IN SUPPORT OF KATE ADAMS. 
 
JOE PIERRE, HEARD REGARDING DIVERSITY, FAVORS SELECTING A DEMOCRAT, 
AND IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS. 
 
SPENCER BRANDT, DISTRICT 3, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS, 
AND OPPOSES APPOINTING A FORMER ELECTED OFFICIAL. 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 5 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

 
YESENIA DECASAUS, SANTA MARIA RESIDENT, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE 
KATE ADAMS. 
 
SARA MacDONALD, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CANDIDATE KATE ADAMS.  
 
7. Discussion, deliberation, and possible action regarding the commissioner appointment for the  

At-Large Commissioner and administer oath of office. 
 
COMMISSIONER OLMEDO ANNOUNCED HE WILL RESIGN DUE TO HIS COMMITMENT 
OF SERVICE, AND IN SUPPORT OF APPOINTING KEVIN ILAC. 
 
CHAIR MORRIS ASKED IF BOTH THE AT-LARGE AND DISTRICT 3 VACANCY JUST 
ANNOUNCED CAN BE FILLED AT ONCE, AND IF THERE ARE ANY DISTRICT 3 
CANDIDATES THAT HAVE NOT BEEN INTERVIEWED.  MS. ORDIN STATED THAT BOTH 
VACANCIES CANNOT BE FILLED TODAY.  MRS. TILTON STATED THAT ALL 
DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATES (WHO HAVE NOT DECLINED) HAVE BEEN INTERVIEWED, 
AND THERE ARE NO OTHER DEMOCRATIC CANDIDATES IN DISTRICT 3, ONLY 
REPUBLICANS.  
 
COMMISSIONER BRADLEY RECOMMENDED REAPPROACHING CANDIDATES IN THE 
ELIGIBLE POOL, AND SUPPORTS KATE ADAMS AND KEVIN ILAC. 
 
VICE CHAIR TURLEY SUPPORTS KATE ADAMS AND KEVIN ILAC. 
 
COMMISSIONER TROSKY EXPRESSED CONCERNS ABOUT KEVIN ILAC’S NO PARTY 
PREFERENCE, AND SUPPORTS LUPE ALVAREZ AND MICHAEL HARTMAN. 
 
COMMISSIONER RIOS SUPPORTS KATE ADAMS AND KEVIN ILAC. 
 
COMMISSIONER TWIBELL SUPPORTS KATE ADAMS AND MICHAEL HARTMAN. 
 
COMMISSIONER McCLINTOCK SUPPORTS KATE ADAMS, AND EXPRESSED CONCERNS 
ABOUT LUPE ALVAREZ’S APPARENT COMMITMENT TO A SPECIFIC COMMUNITY, 
AND THE IDEA THAT A COMMISSIONER SHOULD HAVE A BROADER INTEREST IN THE 
COUNTY. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRAY SUPPORTS KEVIN ILAC AND KATE ADAMS. 
 
MOTION TO APPOINT KATHRYN “KATE” ADAMS TO FILL THE AT-LARGE VACANCY. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:   9  AYES    1  ABSENT 
 
JACQUELYNE ALEXANDER, COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA, ADMINISTERED THE 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 6 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

OATH OF OFFICE TO DR. KATHRYN “KATE” ADAMS. 
 
THE MEETING RECESSED AT 7:42 PM, AND RECONVENED AT 7:51 PM. 
 
8. Outreach:  Update on work on marketing materials. 
 
VICE CHAIR TURLEY, OUTREACH SUB COMMITTEE, GAVE AN UPDATE. 
 

• A DRAFT VIDEO (REDISTRICTING AND JOB OF THE COMMISSION) WITH 
ANIMATED SLIDES AND ENGLISH VOICE OVER IS CLOSE TO FINALIZATION. 

• DRAFT POWERPOINT PRESENTATION FOR COMMUNITY OUTREACH EVENTS 
IS CLOSE TO FINALIZATION. 

• CLOSE TO LAUNCHING FACEBOOK AND INSTAGRAM SOCIAL MEDIA 
CHANNELS, AND WEBSITE. 

• REACHING OUT TO COMMUNITY RESOURCES TO CREATE A SECOND VOICE 
OVER IN MIXTECO, CLOSED CAPTIONING AND OTHER LANGUAGES. 

• INVESTIGATING WECHAT AND WHATSAPP GROUPS. 
• EXPLORING EDITORIALS IN LOCAL NEWS SOURCES. 

 
MRS. TILTON ANNOUNCED THAT COMMISSIONERS WILL RECEIVE A DRAFT OF THE 
CONTENT BY FRIDAY, MAY 21, FOR INPUT AND FEEDBACK.  THE INFORMATION WILL 
BE USED TO FINALIZE THE DRAFT AND A DEMO WILL BE PRESENTED AT THE 
COMMISSION MEETING ON JUNE 2, AS WELL AS A REVIEW OF THE PROPER 
TERMINOLOGY TO USE DURING PRESENTATIONS. 
 
CHAIR MORRIS STATED THE SUBCOMMITTEE CONSISTS OF VICE CHAIR TURLEY, 
COMMISSIONER BRAY AND RIOS, AND MRS. TILTON (STAFF). 
 
9. Demonstration and discussion of public mapping tools and related budget issues. 
 
DR. JOHNSON PRESENTED INFORMATION AND DEMONSTRATED THE PUBLIC 
MAPPING TOOLS. 
 

• ONLINE INTERACTIVE REVIEW MAP (ESRI’S “ArcGIS Online”) – SIMILAR TO 
GOOGLE MAPS 

• SIMPLE MAP DRAWING TOOL:  PAPER “PUBLIC PARTICIPATION KIT” 
• SIMPLE MAP DRAWING TOOL + EXCEL SUPPLEMENT:  “PUBLIC 

PARTICIPATION KIT” 
• DistrictR:  “DRAW YOUR COMMUNITY OF INTEREST” FOCUS 

SIMILAR EXTERNAL OPTIONS: Representable.org, AND DrawMyCACommunity.org 
• CALIPER’S “MAPTITUDE ONLINE REDISTRICTING”:  $30,000 SOFTWARE FEE 

AND HOSTING FEE, AND SIX LANGUAGE OPTIONS (ENGLISH, SPANISH, 
PORTUGUESE, VIETNAMESE, MANDARIN AND KOREAN) 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 7 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

• ESRI ONLINE REDISTRICTING:  $95,500 SOFTWARE AND HOSTING FEE 
(POSSIBLE ADDITIONAL $13,500 TRAINING FEE), AND IN ENGLISH ONLY 

 
COMMISSIONER RIOS EXPRESSED CONCERNS ABOUT ESRI ONLINE BEING 
AVAILABLE IN ENGLISH ONLY, AND THE COST.  MS. ANDERSON STATED THAT 
APPROXIMATELY $75,000 WAS BUDGETED AND COSTS ARE WITHIN THE RANGE. 
 
DR. JOHNSON STATED NDC HAS EXPERIENCE AND GREAT SUCCESS WORKING WITH 
BOTH  CALIPERS AND ESRI ONLINE MAPPING TOOLS, AND THAT MOST LOCAL 
JURISDICTIONS USE CALIPERS. 
 
COMMISSIONER OLMEDO, COMMENTED ABOUT FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY, MAPPING 
WILL NOT DETERMINE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT, AND THE FIRST MAPPING TOOL 
(CALIPERS) IS BEST. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRAY ASKED ABOUT THE $13,500 TRAINING FEE FOR ESRI ONLINE. 
DR. JOHNSON STATED IT’S A BACKEND TRAINING ON THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPONENT AND THERE’S A CHANCE IT MAY OR MAY NOT BE NEEDED. 
 
COMMISSIONER ADAMS AND BRADLEY  EXPRESSED CONCERNS ABOUT THE ABOUT 
THE LANGUAGE LIMITATIONS OF ESRI ONLINE. 
 
VICE CHAIR TURLEY ASKED IF ALL THE MAPPING TOOLS ALL REQUIRE ONLINE 
ACCESS, DR. JOHNSON STATED THEY DO REQUIRE ONLINE, WITH THE EXCEPTION 
OF THE SIMPLE MAP DRAWING TOOL, AND SIMPLE MAP DRAWING TOOL + EXCEL. 
 
COMMISSIONER McCLINTOCK ASKED WHO WILL UPDATE MAP INFORMATION, AND 
DR. JOHNSON STATED NDC WILL UPDATE THE INFORMATION. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
ANDY CALDWELL, HEARD REGARDING DRAWING MAPS AND MAPPING TOOLS, AND 
NDC AND THE COUNTY ASSISTING THE PUBLIC IN MAP DRAWING.  DR. JOHNSON 
STATED THERE WILL BE INFORMATIONAL COMMUNITY FORUMS AND STAFF WILL 
BE AVAILABLE TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, HOWEVER, THERE WON’T BE INDIVIDUAL 
MAP DRAWING TRAINING SESSIONS. 
 
SPENCER BRANDT, HEARD IN FAVOR OF ANY TECHNICAL SUPPORT AVAILABLE TO 
THE PUBLIC FROM THE COUNTY AND NDC. 
 
MS. SOLIS, HEARD REGARDING PLAN FOR SUPPORTING RESIDENTS USING THE 
HYBRID (REMOTE/ZOOM) MODEL. DR. JOHNSON COMMENTED THEY WILL BE ABLE 
TO SHARE THE SCREEN AND ASSIST USERS. 
 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 8 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

COMMISSIONER McCLINTOCK ASKED IF ANY OF THE TOOLS ARE JUST FOR DRAWING 
COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST VS. DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.  DR. JOHNSON STATED 
DistrictR CAN BE USED TO DRAW COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST. 
 
COMMISSIONER TWIBELL ASKED IF A LESS EXPENSIVE TOOL IS SELECTED, CAN THE 
EDUCATION COMPONENT BE ADDED.   MS. ANDERSON INDICATED THERE IS $75,000 
ALLOCATED, AND IF IT COMES IN UNDER, EXISTING MONEY CAN BE REALLOCATED 
TO OTHER AREAS. 
 
MOTION TO SELECT CALIPERS ($30,000) FOR BOUNDARIES, AND DistrictR FOR 
DRAWING COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST AND OUTREACH. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:    10  AYES   1 ABSENT 
 
10. Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding scheduling of public hearings through map 

adoption. 
 
MRS. TILTON PRESENTED INFORMATION ON PRE-MAP OUTREACH HEARINGS AND 
PROPOSED TIMELINE, AND ANTICIPATES THE FEDERAL CENSUS WILL RELEASE 
LOCAL POPULATION NUMBERS TO THE STATES IN MID TO LATE AUGUST. 
 
STATE STATUTES: 

• THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA MUST ADJUST THE POPULATION COUNTS TO 
REASSIGN STATE PRISONERS TO THEIR HOME ADDRESSES, AND THIS WILL 
TAKE SIX WEEKS AFTER THE FEDERAL CENSUS RELEASES LOCAL 
POPULATION COUNTS 

• THE COMMISSION OR COMMISSION’S CONSULTANT CANNOT PRODUCE A 
MAP UNTIL A THREE-WEEK WAITING PERIOD AFTER THE STATE PRISONER-
ADJUSTED DATA IS AVAILABLE.  HOWEVER, THE THREE-WEEK WAITING 
PERIOD IS REDUCED TO ONE WEEK IF THERE IS LESS THAN 60 DAYS BEFORE 
ADOPTION AND ELIMINATED ENTIRELY IF THERE IS LESS THAN 30 DAYS 
BEFORE THE ADOPTION DEADLINE, WHICH, WHICH IS DECEMBER 15. 

 
ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

• THERE MUST BE AT LEAST 7 HEARINGS HELD OVER A PERIOD OF TIME NO 
LESS THAN 30 DAYS BEFORE THE MAPS ARE DRAWN. 

• THERE MUST BE AT LEAST 7 HEARINGS HELD OVER A PERIOD OF TIME NO 
LESS THAN 30 DAYS AFTER THE MAPS ARE DRAWN. 

• AFTER MAPS ARE DRAWN, THEY MUST BE PUBLISHED FOR 7 DAYS BEFORE 
BEING ADOPTED. 

• A NOTICE OF HEARINGS MUST BE PUBLISHED IN THE NEWSPAPER IN ALL 
AREAS OF THE COUNTY. 

• PRE-MAP HEARINGS MUST HAVE AT LEAST ONE HEARING IN EACH 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 9 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

DISTRICT. 
• MUST VARY DAYS OF THE WEEK AND TIMES OF THE DAY TO MEET A 

VARIETY OF WORK SCHEDULES. 
• HEARINGS MUST START AT A FIXED TIME. 
• HEARINGS MUST BE RECORDED AND ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC. 
• ONE OF THE HEARINGS MUST BE HELD AFTER 6PM, OR ON A SATURDAY/ 

SUNDAY. 
 
COMMISSIONER RIOS SUGGESTED CONSIDERATION OF OTHER LOCATIONS SUCH AS 
VETERAN’S HALL, ABEL MALDONADO CENTER, AND THE FAIR GROUNDS FOR 
HEARINGS. 
 
COMMISSIONER MCCLINTOCK ASKED IF IT MAKES SENSE TO ALLOCATE SOME OF 
BUDGET TO PURCHASE TABLETS FOR USE AT THE HEARINGS.  MRS. TILTON 
COMMENTED NDC CAN CHECK WITH THE COUNTY. 
 
COMMISSIONER TROSKY SUGGESTED MONTECITO UNION SCHOOL BE CONSIDERED 
FOR DISTRICT 1 HEARINGS. 
 
CHAIR MORRIS STATED ALTHOUGH A QUORUM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR ALL 
HEARINGS, COMMISSIONERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO CONSIDER ATTENDING 
HEARINGS IN OTHER DISTRICTS TO GET DIFFERENT PERSPECTIVES. 
 
MRS. TILTON PRESENTED INFORMATION MAP PRESENTATION HEARINGS AND 
PROPOSED TIMELINE: 
 

• DRAFT MAPS PRESENTED 
• IDENTIFY 3 – 5 FOCUS MAPS 
• PUBLIC INPUT 
• REVIEW FOCUS AND NEWLY SUBMITTED MAPS 
• IDENTIFY PREFERRED MAP (DIRECTION ON MAP MODIFICATIONS, IF ANY) 
• POST MAP 
• MAP ADOPTION HEARING 

 
COMMISSIONERS MAY HOST ADDITIONAL MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO THE 
SCHEDULED HEARINGS LISTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
GAIL TETON-LANDIS, HEARD REGARDING CONCERNS ABOUT SOME OF THE DATES 
ON THE TIMELINE, AND THE PUBLIC HAVING TIME TO PROVIDE INPUT. 
 
SPENCER BRANDT, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF AN ITERATIVE PROCESS WITH 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for May 19, 2021 
Page | 10 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

OPPORTUNITIES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 
 
MRS. TILTON STATED THAT THE MAPPING TOOLS WILL BE AVAILABLE IN JUNE FOR 
THE PUBLIC TO START DRAWING MAPS, AND SUGGESTED USING THE MAPTITUDE 
GIS SOFTWARE. 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT THE SCHEDULE. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:    10  AYES    1  ABSENT  
 
MS. ORDIN EMPHASIZED THE IMPORTANCE OF REPORTING EX PARTE 
COMMUNICATIONS. 
 
CHAIR MORRIS ANNOUNCED SAL PEREZ’S PRESENTATION ON EX PARTE 
COMMUNICATIONS WILL BE MOVED TO A FUTURE AGENDA. 
 
11. Discussion and possible action regarding future training sessions and other future agenda items. 

 
• OUTREACH FOR CANDIDATE INTEREST FOR DISTRICT 3 VACANCY – 

IMPENDING RESIGNATION OF COMMISSIONER OLMEDO (JUNE 2) 
• ROLLOUT OF OUTREACH MATERIALS:  PRESENTATIONS, TALKING POINTS, 

WEBSITE, AND MARKETING MATERIALS (JUNE 2) 
 
ADJOURNMENT – The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 2, 2021, at 6 p.m. 
 
Agenda Packet Items:  
Item 06 Interview Schedule  
Item 06 Interview Questions  
Item 06 Candidate Applications  
Item 10 Proposed Public Hearing Schedule  
Item 11 Proposed Future Agenda Items 
 



Name City Race/Ethnicity Age Gender Party

District 3 Albert Beyerle Goleta DTS 66 M REP

District 3 Mike Brady Los Olivos W 73 M REP

District 3 Lupe Alvarez* Guadalupe H/L 52 M REP

Wednesday, May 12, 2021

See agenda posted 72 hours in advance at www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

* Mr. Alvarez will not be reinterviewed; instead view Mr. Alavarez' May 12, 2021, interview time marker 00:41:00. 



INTERVIEW QUESTIONS FOR COMMISSION FINALISTS 
(see agenda to be posted 72 hours in advance at www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc ) 

Responses limited to no more than three minutes per question. 
 

 
1. Why do you want to serve on the Redistricting Commission? 
 
2. Given the commission's seated members, and what you know about their backgrounds 

and skill sets, could you highlight elements of your personal background, experiences, 
skills, and knowledge of Santa Barbara County that you think will add to the overall 
diversity of the commission? 

 
3. How would you help the commission to draw lines that promote “communities of 

interest?” 
 

4. Could you describe a project or other experience in which you had to collaborate with a 
group of individuals in order to reach a common goal?  When you disagreed with others, 
how did you handle those disagreements?  

 
5. How do you think the commission should address the problem of public education and 

outreach on redistricting to help encourage broad participation in the commission's 
work? What are some ideas you have for the Commission to solicit public input on the 
redistricting process, and methods of public outreach to ensure transparency?  

  

http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc




























COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA
CITIZENS INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION

PROPOSED TIMELINE

Meeting Type Date Time Quorum Location Description

Hearing 1 Wednesday, June 16, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location (or Virtual) SBC Home
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training / Business Mtg.

Hearing 2 Saturday, June 19, 2021 10 a.m. No
Location (or Virtual) District 2
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training

Hearing 3 Wednesday, July 7, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location SBC Home District 1
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training / Business Mtg.

Hearing 4 Friday, July 9, 2021 2 p.m. No
Location District 3
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training

Hearing 5 Monday, July 12, 2021 6:15 p.m. No
Location District 3 (Guadalupe)
Street NumberTBD
Guadalupe

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training

Hearing 6 Wednesday, August 4, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location District 5
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training / Business Mtg.

Hearing 7 Thursday, August 12, 2021 12 p.m. No
Location District 4
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Redistricting Overview, Input on Communities of 
Interest, Mapping Tools Training

Release of Federal 
Census

mid to late August

Release of State 
Adjusted Counts

early to mid October
If released prior to 9/17, then 21-day waiting period 
before NDC draws maps; if 9/17 through 10/16, then 7-
day waiting period; after 10/17 no waiting period.

Commission Meeting Wednesday, October 6, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location SBC Home
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Review of 2020 Data, Review of existing districts for 
population balance / Business Mtg.

Deadline to Submit 
Initial Draft Maps

Monday, October 18, 2021

Rev. 5 1 of 2 5/13/2021



COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA
CITIZENS INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION

PROPOSED TIMELINE

Meeting Type Date Time Quorum Location Description

Hearing 1 Maps Wednesday, November 3, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location SBC Home
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Presentation of Draft Maps, identify 3-5 focus maps 
(Round 1), direction on any map modifications. 
Business meeting.

Hearing 2 Maps Friday, November 12, 2021 3 p.m. No
Location TBD
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Public Input on Focus Maps (Round 1)

Hearing 3 Maps Monday, November 15, 2021 6 p.m. No
Location TBD
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Public Input on Focus Maps (Round 1)

Hearing 4 Maps Thursday, November 18, 2021 11 a.m. No
Location TBD
Street Number TBD
City TBD

Public Input on Focus Maps (Round 1)

Hearing 5 Maps Monday, November 22, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location SBC Home
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Review Focus and Newly Submitted Maps
Narrow to 3-4 focus maps (Round 2)
Direction on map modifications

Hearing 6 Maps Wednesday, December 1, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location SBC Home
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Identify preferred map. Direction on map 
modifications, if any / Business Mtg

Post Map 3 Days 
Prior to Adoption

Sunday, December 5, 2021

Hearing 7 Maps
Map Adoption

Wednesday, December 8, 2021 6 p.m. Yes
Location SBC Home
Street Number TBD
Santa Barbara

Adopt Map / Business Meeting

Adoption Deadline Wednesday, December 15, 2021

Pre-Map Hearings:  Code Section 2-10.9A.060 (c) Before the commission draws a map, the commission shall conduct at least seven public hearings, allowing for public input on communities of interest and other matters that must be 
considered by the commission, and allow members of the public to present ideas and maps for consideration. These meetings are to take place over a period of no fewer than 30 days, with at least one public hearing held in each 
supervisorial district.

Post Map Hearings: Code Section 2-10.9A.060 ( d) After the commission draws a draft map or alternative maps, the commission shall do both of the following:  (1) Post the map or alternative maps for public comment on the Internet 
Web site of the County of Santa Barbara. (2) Conduct at least seven public hearings to take place over a period of no fewer than 30 days. Notice of each public hearing shall be published in a newspaper or newspapers of general 
circulation in all areas of the county at least seven days prior to the hearing.  
( e) The commission shall establish and make available to the public a calendar of all public hearings described in paragraph (2). Hearings shall be scheduled at various times and days of the week to accommodate a variety of work 
schedules and to reach as large an audience as possible.

Elections Code 21508(d)(1) A draft map shall be published on the internet for at least seven days before being adopted as a final map (or 3 days within 28 days of deadline to adopt)

Rev. 5 2 of 2 5/13/2021



 

 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

HARMEET K. DHILLON (SBN: 207873) 
harmeet@dhillonlaw.com  
MARK P. MEUSER (SBN: 231335) 
mmeuser@dhillonlaw.com 
DHILLON LAW GROUP INC. 
177 Post Street, Suite 700 
San Francisco, California 94108 
Telephone: (415) 433-1700 
Facsimile: (415) 520-6593 
 
Attorneys for Petitioners 
The Coalition of Labor, Agriculture, & Business, a  
California non-profit organization; Roy Reed, an 
individual; Mike Brown, an individual; and  
Alice Patino, an individual 
 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA—UNLIMITED JURISDICTION 

THE COALITION OF LABOR, 
AGRICULTURE, & BUSINESS OF SANTA 
BARBARA COUNTY, a California non-profit 
organization; ROY REED, an individual; 
MIKE BROWN, an individual; and ALICE 
PATINO, an individual, 
 
                                Petitioners, 
v. 
 
SANTA BARBARA COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS; COUNTY OF SANTA 
BARBARA CITIZENS’ INDEPENDENT 
REDISTRICTING COMMISSION, 
FREDERIC D. WOOCHER, an individual; 
STUMWASSER & WOOCHER, LLP, a 
California Business Organization, 
                                 
                                               Respondents 
 

Case No. 
 
VERIFIED PETITION FOR WRIT OF 
MANDAMUS AND REQUEST FOR AN 
EVIDENTARY HEARING [CAL. CODE 
CIV. PRO. §§ 1085 & 1094] 
        
 

 

ELECTRONICALLY FILED
Superior Court of California
County of Santa Barbara
Darrel E. Parker, Executive Officer
4/22/2021 2:52 PM
By: Terri Chavez, Deputy

21CV01642



 

1 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Petitioners Coalition of Labor, Agriculture, & Business of Santa Barbara County, Roy Reed, 

Mike Brown, and Alice Patino (collectively “Petitioners”), through their attorneys, Dhillon Law 

Group Inc., file this Verified Petition for a Writ of Mandamus and Request for Evidentiary Hearing 

against the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) the County of Santa Barbara 

Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission (the “Commission”), Frederic Woocher, and 

Stumwasser & Woocher, LLP (collectively “Respondents”) and allege as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This case concerns the Commission and Board’s failure to follow a straightforward but 

critical ordinance designed to ensure the political independence of the Commission. The ordinance at 

issue precludes the Commission from hiring legal counsel who have been involved with a political 

committee in the past eight years. The ordinance also prohibits hiring legal counsel who do not live in 

Santa Barbara County, are not registered to vote there, or have not voted there in one of the last three 

general elections.  

2. Respondent County of Santa Barbara Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission 

retained Attorney Frederic D. Woocher, and his law firm, Strumwasser & Woocher, on March 9, 

2021.  

3. Attorney Woocher has been involved with a Santa Barbara County political committee 

in the last eight years and he does not live in Santa Barbara County. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the California Constitution, 

Article VI, Section 10, which grants the superior courts “original jurisdiction in proceedings for 

extraordinary relief in the nature of mandamus.” 

5. This Court has jurisdiction over all Respondents, because each Respondents are 

domiciled in the State of California. 

6. Venue is proper in this Court because Respondents Board and Commission exercise 

their authority in their official capacities in this County, including in their various activities related to 

the contract with Mr. Woocher and his firm.  

// 

 



 

2 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

PARTIES 

7. Petitioner Coalition of Labor, Agriculture, & Business of Santa Barbara County is a 

coalition of organized labor, agriculture, and business entities formed in Santa Barbara County to 

provide input into the decision-making process at the county government level in order to achieve a 

balance between environmental and economic considerations. Petitioner works to ensure that the local 

county government follows federal, state, and local laws and does not act in an arbitrary or partisan 

manner. 

8. Petitioner Roy Reed is a resident of Santa Barbara County. His family has been 

farming and ranching in the Santa Maria valley for over 150 years. While he is the President of the 

Santa Barbara County Taxpayers, he is bringing this Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus in his 

own personal capacity. 

9. Petitioner Mike Brown is a resident of Santa Barbara County. 

10. Petitioner Alice Patino is a resident of Santa Barbara County. While she is the Mayor 

of Santa Maria, she is bringing this Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus in her own personal 

capacity. 

11. Respondent Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors is made a party to this Action 

in its official capacity as the governing authority for Santa Barbara County. The Board sets policy for 

County departments, oversees the County budget, works with the Commission, adopts ordinances on 

local matters, and establishes land use policies that affect unincorporated areas. 

12. Respondent County of Santa Barbara Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission 

is made a party to this Action in its capacity as the entity charged with establishing the electoral 

district boundaries in Santa Barbara County for the upcoming decade following receipt of the 2020 

federal census data. In the November 2018 Statewide General Election, Santa Barbara County voters 

approved Measure G, which formed the 11-member commission.  

13. Respondent Frederic D. Woocher is a resident of Los Angeles County and is made a 

party to this Action as he has signed a contract with the Respondent Commission to be their 

independent counsel. 

// 

 



 

3 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

14. Respondent Strumwasser & Woocher, LLC is made a party to this Action as 

Respondent Law Firm has signed a contract with the Commission to represent them. Respondent 

Frederic D. Woocher works for this law firm, which is located in Los Angeles County. 

FACTS 

15. The Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors generally sets policy for County 

departments, oversees the County budget, and adopts ordinances on local matters.  

16. Seeking to create an independent commission charged with drawing electoral district 

boundaries in Santa Barbara County, on July 17, 2018, the Board passed an ordinance (the 

“Redistricting Ordinance”) forming a redistricting commission called the “County of Santa Barbara 

Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission.” (Attached hereto at Exhibit 1 is a true and correct 

copy). 

17. On November 6, 2018, the voters of Santa Barbara County approved the Redistricting 

Ordinance. 

18. The Redistricting Ordinance created the Commission, which is an 11-member 

independent redistricting commission formed to establish the electoral district boundaries in Santa 

Barbara County for the upcoming decade following receipt of the 2020 federal census data.  

19. Importantly, the Redistricting Ordinance imposes direct limitations on what firms or 

individuals may be hired as legal counsel or other consultants by the Commission.  

20. Section 2-10.9A(5)(d) of the Redistricting Ordinance provides: 

(5)(d)(1) The commission shall not retain a consultant who would not be 
qualified as an applicant pursuant to subsection (4)(d). 
 
(2)  For purposes of this subdivision, “consultant” means a person, whether or not 
compensated, retained to advise the commission or a commission member regarding 
any aspect of the redistricting process. 

21. The grounds for disqualification of commissioners from the Commission, and therefore 

also grounds for disqualification of counsel under Section 2-10.9A(4)(d), include certain restrictions. 

22. Pursuant to subsection 2-10.9A(4)(d), commissioners, their counsel, and consultants 

must meet the following criteria: 

 



 

4 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

4(d)(1) Be a resident of the County of Santa Barbara 
4(d)(2) Be a voter registered in Santa Barbara County 
4(d)(4) Have voted in Santa Barbara County in at least one of the last three statewide 
elections immediately preceding his or her application to be a member of the 
commission. 
4(d)(6)(C) No commissioner or immediate family member may, within the last 
eight years preceding appointment to the commission, … had a significant influence on 
the actions or decisions of a political committee required to register with the California 
Secretary of State, which expended funds in excess of five hundred dollars in support 
or opposition to a candidate for any elective office of the County of Santa Barbara, 
including member communications.  

23. The Commission may not engage any consultant, including legal counsel, who has 

worked for any political committee in the past eight years.  

24. The disqualification provisions are very broad to prohibit the politicization of the 

Commission. 

25.  The disqualification provisions are intended to prevent not only the appointment of 

commissioners or consultants who are actually partisan and biased, but also those who might merely 

appear to be biased by reason of their past political activities or associations. 

26. On December 8, 2020, Santa Barbara County Counsel sent a letter seeking an 

independent legal counsel for the Commission and requesting that potential firms confirm “that 

anyone assigned to provide services under the contract would not be disqualified under Elections 

Code Section 23003 or Santa Barbara County Code Sections 2-10.9A(4)(d)(5) or (4)(d)(6).” (Attached 

hereto as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy). 

27. On February 3, 2021, the Commission approved a final contract and recommended 

Attorney Frederic D. Woocher and his law firm, Strumwasser & Woocher, be approved as 

independent counsel to the Commission. (Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the 

Summary of Proceedings). 

28. Mr. Woocher is an attorney residing in Los Angeles County, is registered to vote in 

Los Angeles County, and votes in that County.  

29. Mr. Woocher previously represented Ms. Doreen Farr, who served on the County 

Board of Supervisors. 

// 

 



 

5 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

30. In 2012 and 2013, Mr. Woocher was involved in litigation for Supervisor Farr that 

went to the United States Supreme Court. (Attached hereto as Exhibit 4 is a true and correct copy). 

31. Mr. Woocher was active in this case and filed a brief with the Supreme Court on May 

6, 2013. (Id.).  

32. May 6, 2013, is within 8 years of the Commission’s February 3, 2021, recommendation 

of Mr. Woocher. 

33. The agenda for the Board’s March 9 2021, meeting included consideration and 

approval of the agreement with Mr. Woocher. (Attached hereto as Exhibit 5 is a true and correct copy 

of the Board of Supervisors Agenda Letter). 

34. On March 9, 2021, the Board of Supervisors voted to approve the contract with Mr. 

Woocher. (Attached hereto as Exhibit 6 is a true and correct copy of the Minute Order).  

WRIT OF MANDAMUS 

35. California Code of Civil Procedure §1085 provides that a “writ of mandate may be 

issued by any court to any … board … to compel the performance of any act which the law specially 

enjoins …”. 

36. A trial court may exercise “its power under Code of Civil Procedure section 1085 to 

correct abuses of discretion by public officers.” (National Tax-Limitation Com. v. Schwarzenegger 

(2003) 113 Cal. App. 4th 1266, 1271.)  

37. Mandamus may issue “to compel an official both to exercise his discretion (if he is 

required by law to do so) and to exercise it under a proper interpretation of the applicable law.” 

(California Hospital Assn. v. Maxwell-Jolly (App. 1 Dist. 2010) 188 Cal. App. 4th 559, 570.)  

38. The question in this case involves enforcement of a local ordinance adopted by the 

residents of Santa Barbara and ignored by the Commission and the Board.  

39. The court’s “primary concern is giving effect to the intended purpose of the provisions 

at issue.” (California Cannabis Coalition v. City of Upland (2017) 3 Cal. 5th 924, 933.)  

40. It is the court’s duty to “‘jealously guard’ and liberally construe” the people’s power to 

pass laws through initiative “so that it be not improperly annulled.” (Id. at 935.)  

41. This Writ seeks to void the contract for legal services with Respondent Woocher.  



 

6 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

42. Since a matter of public right is at stake, Petitioners need not show any legal or special 

interest, as Petitioner is “interested . . . in having the laws executed.” (Save the Plastic Bag Coalition 

v. City of Manhattan Beach (2011) 52 Cal. 4th 155, 166).  

43. Petitioners have no plain, speedy, or adequate remedy in the ordinary course of law. 

44. Petitioners have found it necessary to engage the services of private counsel to require 

the Respondents to follow the law. Petitioners are therefore entitled to an award of attorney fees and 

costs pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Petitioners pray that this Court: 

(a) Conduct a hearing pursuant to Cal. Code Civ. Pro §1094; 

(b) Grant Petitioners’ Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus, voiding any agreement for 

legal services between Respondents and Mr. Woocher and his firm, as such an agreement would be 

inconsistent and in conflict with the law; 

(c) Require Respondents Mr. Woocher and his firm to disgorge any fees that they have 

received as a result of the illegal contract; 

(d) For attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Code Civ. Proc., § 1021.5; 

(e) For costs of suit incurred herein; and 

(f) For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

Date: April 22, 2021    DHILLON LAW GROUP INC. 
 
 
 
     By: ____________________________________ 

Mark P. Meuser 
Harmeet K. Dhillon 
 
Attorneys for Petitioners 
The Coalition of Labor, Agriculture, & Business; 
a California non-profit organization; Roy Reed, 
an individual; Mike Brown, an individual; and  
Alice Patino, an individual 
 

 
  

HToschi
MPM



 

7 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

VERIFICATION OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS AND REQUEST 
FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING  

I, James Andrew Caldwell, declare as follows: 
1. I am the Chief Executive Officer of the Coalition of Labor, Agriculture & 

Business of Santa Barbara County, a Petitioner in this Action. 
2. I have read the foregoing Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus and 

Request for Evidentiary Hearing (“Petition”) and know the contents thereof. I have 
personal knowledge of myself, my activities, and my intentions, including those set out 
in the foregoing Petition, and if called on to testify I would competently testify as to the 
matters stated herein. 

3. As to all other matters stated in the Petition, I am informed and believe 
them to be true. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 20, 2021 at 
_________________________. 
 
 
            

James Andrew Caldwell for Petitioner Coalition of 
Labor, Agriculture & Business of Santa Barbara 
County 
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: BBB65F79-9098-4328-9014-0B9EA5D15251

Nipomo California



 

8 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

VERIFICATION OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS AND REQUEST 
FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING 

I, Roy Reed, declare as follows: 
1. I am a Petitioner in this Action. 
2. I have read the foregoing Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus and 

Request for Evidentiary Hearing (“Petition”) and know the contents thereof. I have 
personal knowledge of myself, my activities, and my intentions, including those set out 
in the foregoing Petition, and if called on to testify I would competently testify as to the 
matters stated herein. 

3. As to all other matters stated in the Petition, I am informed and believe 
them to be true. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 20, 2021, at 
___________________. 
 
 
            
     Roy Reed 
 
 
 
  



 

9 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

VERIFICATION OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS AND REQUEST 
FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING  

I, Mike Brown, declare as follows: 
1. I am a Petitioner in this Action. 
2. I have read the foregoing Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus and 

Request for Evidentiary Hearing (“Petition”) and know the contents thereof. I have 
personal knowledge of myself, my activities, and my intentions, including those set out 
in the foregoing Petition, and if called on to testify I would competently testify as to the 
matters stated herein. 

3. As to all other matters stated in the Petition, I am informed and believe 
them to be true. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 20, 2021, at 
__________________________. 
 
 
            
     Mike Brown 
 
 
  



 

10 
Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus Case No. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

VERIFICATION OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS AND REQUEST 
FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING 

I, Alice Patino, declare as follows: 
1. I am a Petitioner in this Action. 
2. I have read the foregoing Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus and 

Request for Evidentiary Hearing and know the contents thereof. I have personal 
knowledge of myself, my activities, and my intentions, including those set out in the 
foregoing Petition, and if called on to testify I would competently testify as to the 
matters stated herein. 

3. As to all other matters stated in the Petition, I am informed and believe 
them to be true. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 22, 2021, at 
_________________________. 
 
 
            
     Alice Patino 



HToschi
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 1



COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA ORDINANCE NO. 5051 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADDING SECTION 2-10.9A TO THE 
SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CODE TO CREATE A COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 

CITIZENS' INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION 

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Barbara ordains as follows: 

SECTION 1: CREATION OF CITIZENS' INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING 
COMMISSION. 

The following Section 2-10.9A is hereby added to the Santa Barbara County Code: 

Section 2-10.9A - County of Santa Barbara Citizens' Independent Redistricting 
Commission 

Section 2-10.9A.010 Purpose: 

The purpose of this section is to establish the procedures for determination of 
electoral district boundaries with the County of Santa Barbara. This section may 
also be known as "You Draw the Lines - County of Santa Barbara Citizens' 
Independent Redistricting Commission." 

Section 2-10.9A.020 Definitions: 
As used in this chapter, the following terms have the following meanings: 

(a) "Board" means the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa 
Barbara. 

(b) "Commission" means the County of Santa Barbara Citizens' 
Independent Redistricting Commission in the County of Santa Barbara 
established as provided herein. 

( c) "Immediate family member" means a spouse, child, in-law, parent, or 
sibling. 

( d) "Significant Financial Interest" includes the following: 
(i) Ownership or partial ownership, other than through the not more 

than 5% of the stock of any corporation that is allowed through 
Section 2-10.9A.020(d)(iv) below, of any for-profit company, 
corporation or other business entity with gross receipts of over 
$ 100,000 derived from doing business in Santa Barbara County 
in any of the last five calendar years prior to appointment. 

(ii) A partnership interest in any for-profit company or business with 
gross receipts of over$ 100,000 derived from doing business in 

Page 1 



Santa Barbara County in any of the last five calendar years prior 
to appointment. 

(iii) Holding the position of director, CEO, or a management position 
with a salary in excess of$ 100,000 per year in any for-profit 
company, corporation or other business entity doing business in 
the County of Santa Barbara. 

(iv) Ownership of more than 5% of the stock of any corporation or 
other business entity doing business in Santa Barbara County, 

(v) Being an immediate family member of any person described in 
subsections (i-v) above. 

(vi) The County Board of Supervisors may adjust the dollar amounts 
stated above by the amount by the cumulative change in the 
California Consumer Price Index, or its successor, in every year 
ending in zero. 

Section 2-10.9A.030 - Establishment of Commission 
There shall be, in the County of Santa Barbara, a County of Santa Barbara Citizens' 
Independent Redistricting Commission. In the year following the year in which the 
decennial federal census is taken, the commission shall adjust the boundaries of 
any or all of the supervisorial districts (also known as "redistricting") of the County 
of Santa Barbara. The commission shall: 

(a) proceed through an open and transparent process enabling full public 
consideration of and comment on the drawing of district lines; 
(b) draw district lines according to the redistricting criteria specified in the 
Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, and the California Voting Rights Act of 
2001, and specified in this article; and 
( c) conduct themselves with integrity and fairness. 

Section 2-10.9A.040 - Creation of Commission: 

(a) The commission shall be created no later than December 31, 2020, and 
in each year ending in the number zero thereafter. 

(b) The selection process is designed to produce a commission that is 
independent from the influence of the board, political parties, campaign 
contributors or other special financial interests, and is reasonably 
representative of the county's diversity. 

( c) The commission shall consist of 11 members. 
( d) Each commission member shall meet all of the following minimum 

qualifications: 
(1) Be a resident of the County of Santa Barbara. 
(2) Be a voter registered in Santa Barbara County. 
(3) Have not changed registered political party affiliation within the past five 
years immediately preceding the date of his or her appointment to the 
commission. 

Page 2 



( 4) Have voted in Santa Barbara County in at least one of the last three 
statewide elections immediately preceding his or her application to be a 
member of the commission. 
(5) The member must also be eligible under the provisions of Elections Code 
§ 23003( c), or any successor provision governing qualifications of 
commissioners for independent redistricting commissions. 
(6) In addition: 

(A) no commissioner may have any Significant Financial Interest, as 
defined in this measure, in any company, corporation or other business entity 
that has donated $ 500 or more in one year to any candidate for elective 
office of the County of Santa Barbara, or to any controlled committee, 
primarily formed committee, general purpose committee, independent 
expenditure committee that expended funds in support or opposition to a 
candidate for elective office of the County of Santa Barbara within the last 
eight years preceding appointment to the commission; and 

(B) no commissioner or immediate family member may, within the last 
8 years preceding appointment to the commission, have contributed $ 500 or 
more in one year to any Candidate Controlled Committee, Primarily Formed 
Committee, or General Purpose Committee, Independent Expenditures 
Committee or other political action committee that has expended more than 
$ 1,000 in support or in opposition to the election campaign for any elective 
office of the County of Santa Barbara. 

(C) no commissioner or immediate family member may, within the last 
8 years preceding appointment to the commission, have been a board 
member, officer, paid or volunteer staff of, or had a significant influence on 
the actions or decisions of a political committee required to register with the 
California Secretary of State, which expended funds in excess of $500 in 
support or opposition to a candidate for any elective office of the County of 
Santa Barbara, including member communications. 

(D) The County Board of Supervisors may adjust the dollar amounts 
stated above by the cumulative change in the California Consumer Price 
Index, or its successor, in every year ending in zero. 

(e) An interested person meeting the qualifications specified in subdivision (d) may 
submit an application to the county elections official to be considered for membership 
on the commission. The county elections official shall review the applications and 
eliminate applicants who do not meet the specified qualifications and post all 
applications online for public review. 

(1) From the pool of qualified applicants, the county elections official shall 
select the 45 most qualified applicants, taking into account the following 
criteria: 

(A) experience that demonstrates analytical skills relevant to the redistricting 
process and voting rights, and ability to comprehend and apply the applicable 
state and federal legal requirements. 

(B) experience that demonstrates an ability to be impartial. 

Page 3 



(C) experience that demonstrates an appreciation for the diverse 
demographics and geography of the County of Santa Barbara. 

(D) Nine (9) applicants from each existing supervisorial district shall be 
included in the list of most qualified applicants, unless there are less than 
nine (9) applicants from the district that meet the minimum qualifications set 
forth in subdivision ( d), in which case the total number of qualified applicants 
will constitute the pool. 

(f) The county elections official shall make public the names of the 45 most 
qualified applicants for at least 30 days. The county elections official shall not 
communicate with a member of the board, staff member or an agent for a member 
of the board, about any matter related to the nomination process or applicants 
before the publication of the list of the 45 most qualified applicants. During the 
period described in paragraph (f), the county elections official may eliminate any of 
the previously selected applicants if the official becomes aware that the applicant 
does not meet the qualifications specified in subdivision (d). After complying with 
the above requirements of this subdivision (f), the county elections official shall 
create a subpool for each of the five existing supervisorial districts of the board 
comprised of qualified applicants residing in the district corresponding to the 
subpool to which they have been assigned. 

(g) At a regularly scheduled meeting of the board, the District Attorney of the 
County of Santa Barbara shall conduct a random drawing to select one 
commissioner from each of the five subpools established by the county elections 
official. 

(h) (1) The five selected commissioners shall review the remaining names in the 
subpools of applicants and shall appoint six additional applicants to the commission. 
In order to be appointed, an applicant must receive the vote of at least four of the 
five selected commissioners. 

(2) Five of the additional applicants will be selected, one from each of the 
existing five subpools reflecting the five existing supervisorial districts, and 
one at large based on the criteria in (3) 

(3) The six appointees shall be chosen based on relevant experience, 
analytical skills, and ability to be impartial, and to ensure that the 
commission reflects the county's diversity, including racial, ethnic, 
geographic, age and gender diversity. However, formulas or specific ratios 
shall not be applied for this purpose. The five commissioners shall also 
consider political party preference, selecting applicants so that the political 
party preferences of the members of the commission, as shown on the 
members' most recent affidavits of registration, shall be as proportional as 
possible to the percentage of voters who are registered with each political 
party in the County of Santa Barbara, as determined by registration at the 
most recent statewide election. However, the political party preferences of 

Page 4 



the commission members are not required to be exactly the same as the 
proportion of the political party preferences among the registered voters of 
the County. For this purpose, voters registered without stating a party 
preference or registered with any party that had a total registration of less 
than five percent (5%) in the County at the time of the last statewide 
election shall be considered unaffiliated. Unaffiliated members shall also be 
appointed to the commission in rough proportion to the percentage of 
unaffiliated registered voters at the time of the most recent statewide 
election. 
( 4) The five initial commissioners shall interview finalists for appointment, 
allow public comment, and make the appointments during a public hearing. 

(i) A member of the commission shall not themselves do any of the following: 
(1) While serving on the commission, endorse, work for, volunteer for, or 
make a campaign contribution to, a candidate for any County elective office. 
(2) Be a candidate for an elective County office for 10 years commencing 
with the date of his or her appointment to the commission. 
(3) For four years commencing with the date of his or her appointment to the 
commission: 

(A) Accept an appointment to any County office, board or commission. 
(B) Accept employment as a staff member of, or consultant to, an 
elected County official or candidate for County elective office. 
(C) In their personal capacity, receive a noncompetitively bid contract 
with the County. 
(D) Register as a lobbyist for the County. 

(j) (1) A commissioner shall be removed from the commission upon occurrence of 
any of the following: 

(A) The commissioner fails to attend a majority of publicly noticed 
commission meetings held within any three-month period. 

(B) It is determined upon the basis of information not provided in the 
commissioner's application to serve that the commissioner is not qualified under the 
provisions of subdivision 2-10.9A.040(d), or that the commissioner has ceased to 
be qualified under the provisions of subdivisions 2-10.9A.040(d) or 2-10.9A.040(i) 
due to events or circumstances occurring alter the filing of his or her application. 

(C)(l) The commissioner is convicted of: (i) a felony; (ii) any violation of 
state, local or federal election laws; (iii) any criminal violation of the Ralph M. 
Brown Act; (iv) bribery or any other crime involving violation of the public trust; (v) 
any crime involving moral turpitude. In the event that any commissioner is 
charged with any such crime, the commissioner shall be suspended from the 
commission until a determination of guilt or innocence on the relevant charges is 
made in the trial court. Termination from the commission shall occur automatically 

Page 5 



upon conviction of such crime by trial or plea, regardless of the pendency of any 
subsequent appeal. 

(2) Any voter registered in the County of Santa Barbara may request that a 
commissioner be removed for any of the reasons stated in subdivision 2-
10.9A.040(j)(l) by submitting a written request for removal of the commissioner to 
the commission stating the grounds for removal. If the commissioner being 
charged contests the grounds for disqualification or otherwise refuses to resign, 
that matter shall be referred by the commission to the Elections Officer of the 
County of Santa Barbara for a determination. The Elections Officer shall consider 
all evidence submitted by the commissioner being charged, as well as any evidence 
received from the commission or any member of the public. The elections official 
shall make a determination within 30 days as to whether the commissioner shall be 
removed, or within no more than 60 days if the elections official determines that 
more than 30 days are required for investigation or production of additional 
evidence. The decision of the elections official shall be final and effective 
immediately, unless and until overturned by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

(3) If any vacancy occurs on the commission by reason of the death, 
removal or resignation of any commissioner, the remaining members of the 
commission shall select a replacement commissioner from the pool of most qualified 
applicants previously selected by the County elections officer, utilizing the criteria 
set forth in subdivision 2-10.9A.040(h)(3). To the extent practical the replacement 
commissioner shall be selected to maintain the balance of district representation 
and political affiliations that existed prior to the vacancy. 

( 4) A commissioner will be considered to have resigned if they are no longer 
a resident of, or registered voter within in the County of Santa Barbara. 

Section 2-10.9A.050 - Operating Rules for Commission 

(a) A commission member shall apply this chapter in a manner that is impartial and 
that reinforces public confidence in the integrity of the redistricting process. 

(b) The term of office of each member of the commission expires upon the 
appointment of the first member of the succeeding commission. 

( c) Seven members of the commission shall constitute a quorum. Seven or more 
affirmative votes shall be required for any official action. 

( d) 1) The commission shall not retain a consultant who would not be qualified 
as an applicant pursuant to subdivision 2-10.9A.040(d). 
(2) For purposes of this subdivision, "consultant" means a person, whether or 
not compensated, retained to advise the commission or a commission 
member regarding any aspect of the redistricting process. 

Page 6 



( e) Each commission member shall be a designated employee for purposes of the 
conflict of interest code adopted by the County of Santa Barbara pursuant to Article 
3 (commencing with Section 87300) of Chapter 7 of Title 9 of the Government 
Code. 

(f) The commission is subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing 
with Section 54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code and 
the California Public Records Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of 
Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code). 

(g) The commission shall take steps to encourage county residents to participate in 
the redistricting public review process. These steps may include: 

(1) Providing information through media, social media, and public 
service announcements. 

(2) Coordinating with community organizations. 
(3) Posting information on the Internet Web site of the County of 

Santa Barbara that explains the redistricting process and includes a notice of 
each public hearing and the procedures for testifying during a hearing or 
submitting written testimony directly to the commission. 

( 4) Encouraging interested citizens and community organizations to 
submit proposed maps for review and consideration by the commission. 

(h) At each public meeting of the commission, each commission member shall 
clearly disclose the sources and summaries of any ex parte communications they 
have had concerning the redistricting process. 

Section 2-10.9A.060 Rules for Establishing District Boundaries 

(a) The commission shall establish single-member supervisorial districts for the 
board pursuant to a mapping process using the following criteria as set forth in the 
following order of priority: 

(1) Districts shall comply with the United States Constitution and each 
district shall have a reasonably equal population with other districts for the 
board, except where deviation is required to comply with the federal Voting 
Rights Act of 1965 (52 U.S.C. Sec. 10101 et seq.) or allowable by law. 
(2) Districts shall comply with the federal Voting Rights Act of 1965 (52 
U.S.C. Sec. 10101 et seq.). 
(3) Districts shall comply with the California Voting Rights Act of 2001 
(Division 14; Chapter 1.5 Rights of Voters of the Election Code (commencing 
with Section 14025) 
(4) Districts shall comply with California election code section 21500, and in 
establishing the boundaries of the supervisorial district the commission shall 
give consideration to the following factors (a)topography, (b) geography, (c) 
cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity and compactness of territory, and (d) 
community of interests of the supervisorial districts. 
(5) Districts shall be geographically contiguous. 
(6) The geographic integrity of any city, local neighborhood, or local 
community of interest shall be respected in a manner that minimizes its 
division to the extent possible without violating the requirements of 

Page 7 



paragraphs (1) to (3), inclusive. A community of interest is a contiguous 
population that shares common social and economic interests that should be 
included within a single district for purposes of its effective and fair 
representation. Communities of interest shall not include relationships with 
political parties, incumbents, or political candidates. 
(7) To the extent practicable, and where this does not conflict with 
paragraphs (1) to (6), inclusive, districts shall be drawn to encourage 
geographical compactness such that nearby areas of population are not 
bypassed for more distant areas of population. 

(b) The place of residence of any incumbent or political candidate shall not be 
considered in the creation of a map. Districts shall not be drawn for purposes of 
favoring or discriminating against an incumbent, political candidate, or political 
party. 

( c) Before the commission draws a map, the commission shall conduct at least 
seven public hearings, allowing for public input on communities of interest and 
other matters that must be considered by the commission, and allow members of 
the public to present ideas and maps for consideration. These meetings are to take 
place over a period of no fewer than 30 days, with at least one public hearing held 
in each supervisorial district. 

( d) After the commission draws a draft map or alternative maps, the commission 
shall do both of the following: 

(1) Post the map or alternative maps for public comment on the Internet 
Web site of the County of Santa Barbara. 
(2) Conduct at least seven public hearings to take place over a period of no 
fewer than 30 days. Notice of each public hearing shall be published in a 
newspaper or newspapers of general circulation in all areas of the county at 
least seven days prior to the hearing. 

( e) The commission shall establish and make available to the public a calendar of 
all public hearings described in paragraph (2). Hearings shall be scheduled at 
various times and days of the week to accommodate a variety of work schedules 
and to reach as large an audience as possible. 

(f) The commission shall arrange for the live translation of a hearing held pursuant 
to this chapter in an applicable language if a request for translation is made at least 
24 hours before the hearing. 

For purposes of this paragraph, an "applicable language" means a language 
for which the number of residents of the County of Santa Barbara who are 
members of a language minority is greater than or equal to 3 percent of the total 
voting age residents of the county. 

(g) Each of the.public meetings of the commission shall be video recorded and· 
available to the public for review. 

Page 8 



(h) The commission shall adopt a redistricting plan adjusting the boundaries of the 
supervisorial districts and shall file the plan with the county elections official within 
six months after the final population figures determined in each decennial federal 
census have been reached, but in any event not later than the date required to 
comply with California Elections Code Section 23003, as may be amended. An 
affirmative vote of 7 commissioners shall be required to approve a redistricting 
plan. 

(i) In the event that there are not 7 or more votes for affirmative approval of a 
plan, the redistricting plan shall be completed by a supervisorial redistricting 
commission in accordance with California Elections Code Sections 21501 and 
21502, as may be amended, no later than December 31 of the year following the 
federal census. The supervisorial redistricting commission may consider a majority 
report, minority report or reports and any proposed maps prepared by the 
commission. 

(j) A plan approved by 7 or more affirmative votes of the commission shall be 
effective 30 days after it is filed with the county elections official. A final plan 
approved by the supervisorial redistricting commission shall be effective 
immediately. 

(k) The plan shall be subject to referendum in the same manner as ordinances. 

(I) The commission shall issue, with the final plan, a report that explains the basis 
on which the commission made its decisions in achieving compliance with the 
criteria described in subdivisions (a) and (b). 

Section 210.9A.070 - General Provisions 

(a) If any provision of this measure, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provisions shall not be affected, but 
shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end the provisions of this measure 
are severable. 

(b) This measure is intended to provide the sole and exclusive procedure for 
adjustment of supervisorial district boundaries in the County of Santa Barbara. In 
the event that any other measure concerning adjustment of supervisorial district 
boundaries appears on the same election ballot as this measure, all provisions of 
that measure shall be deemed to be in conflict with this measure. In the event that 
this measure receives a greater number of valid affirmative votes, the provisions of 
this measure shall prevail in their entirety and all provisions of the other measure 
or measures shall have no force or effect. 

SECTION TWO: 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, (CEQA) Guidelines section 
15378(b )(5), adoption of this Ordinance is an organizational or administrative 

Page 9 



activity of government that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in 
the environment and is not a project subject to the requirements of CEQA. 

SECTION THREE: 

Except as amended by this Ordinance the Santa Barbara County Code shall remain 
unchanged and shall continue in full force and effect. 

SECTION FOUR: 

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty days from and after the approval by a 
majority of the votes cast by voters voting upon the Ordinance at the November 6, 
2018 election. This Ordinance, or a summary thereof, shall be published in 
accordance with Government Code Section 25124, with the names of the members 
of the Board of Supervisors voting for and against the same, in a newspaper of 
general circulation published in the County of Santa Barbara. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Santa Barbara, State of California, this 17th day of July, 2018, by the following 
vote, subject to approval by the electorate at the election of November 6, 2018: 

AYES: Supervisors Williams, Wolf, Hartmann, Adam, and Lavagnino 

NOES: None 

ABSTAINED: None 

ABSENT: None 

ATTEST: 
MONA MIYASATO 
CLERK OF THE BOARD 

~ By. , -
oeputyCerk 

as Williams 
Chair, Board of Supervisors 

Page 10 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
MICHAEL C. GHIZZONI 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

Page 11 



HToschi
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 2

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text



 COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA  

 

 

 

Michael C. Ghizzoni 
 County Counsel 
 

 
 

 
 
 

105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 201 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Telephone: (805) 568-2950 
FAX: (805) 568-2982 

             
 

 COUNTY COUNSEL  

December 8, 2020 

 
Re: Request for Statement of Qualifications and Proposal to Serve as Independent Legal 
 Counsel for the County of Santa Barbara Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission  

  
 

INTRODUCTION  
On behalf of the County of Santa Barbara Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission 
(“Commission”), Santa Barbara County’s Office of County Counsel is soliciting statements of 
qualifications and proposals from law firms to serve as independent legal counsel (“Legal 
Counsel”) for the Commission. 
 
The passage of County of Santa Barbara Measure G in 2018 provided for the formation of the 
Commission, and established procedures for determination of electoral district boundaries 
within the County.  Measure G is codified at Section 2-10.9A of the Santa Barbara County Code. 
 
The first five Commissioners have been selected, and those Commissioners are in the process of 
selecting the additional six Commissioners, which will occur by December 31, 2020. 
 
More information about the Commission is located at the following web site: 
http://www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc. 
 
On November 10, 2020, the County’s Board of Supervisors approved a contract for legal 
services for the Commission with a firm (“current counsel”) that will be terminated by January 
31, 2021 unless the Commission decides that it wants to continue with the current counsel.   
 
SCHEDULE   
Submissions are due on January 8, 2021 by 5:00PM.  The submissions will be posted on the 
Commission’s web site as part of the agenda materials for a Commission meeting in January 
2021.  If a firm is selected that is other than the current counsel, then a contract would be 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES  
Legal Counsel shall provide independent legal counsel to the Commission, including providing 
independent legal advice and handling litigation, when requested from time to time.   
 
Under the general direction of the Commission, Legal Counsel shall: 
 



2 
 

 

• Serve as the legal advisor for the Commission and consultants and staff assigned to the 

Commission. 

• Advise the Commission at meetings, public hearings, and other legal proceedings. 

• Ensure that all constitutional, statutory, and regulatory requirements and court 

decisions governing the Commission’s activities are properly interpreted, including but 

not limited to Santa Barbara County Code Section 2-10.9A, the Ralph. M. Brown Act, the 

Public Records Act, the California Elections Code, and the federal Voting Rights Act of 

1965. 

• Provide legal representation administratively and, if applicable, in court. 

• Render written and verbal legal advice. 

• Render legal advice regarding policies within the Commission’s legal areas of 

responsibility, if any. 

• Ensure that any administrative policies adopted by the Commission are consistent with 

law and are implemented fair and impartially. 

Legal Counsel shall ensure that information relating to Legal Counsel’s legal support of the 
Commission is protected as required by Business and Professions Code Section 6068(e); this 
includes Legal Counsel’s preserving the confidentiality of that information from the County of 
Santa Barbara’s Office of County Counsel, except that Legal Counsel may communicate with the 
Office of County Counsel as would be appropriate between attorneys who represent opposing 
parties at “arm’s-length.”     
 
ESSENTIAL KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES 
Responses must demonstrate the ability to perform high-level analysis of the legal issues 
associated with administration of the Commission as well as the redistricting process. Such 
overall ability requires that the primary service provider as the Legal Counsel possess the 
following: 
 

• Active membership in the State Bar of California. 

• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and in oral presentations with a variety of 

contacts, including the Commissioners, outside attorneys, public officials, the public, 

press and staff. 

• Ability to accurately appraise legal problems, perform legal research, and correctly apply 

legal principles, evidentiary rules and precedents to proposed solutions. 

• Ability to write and edit correspondence, pleadings, briefings, talking points, and legal 

opinions. 

• Ability to represent the Commission at meetings, public hearings, and other legal 

proceedings. 

• Ability to synthesize, clarify, and disseminate complex information. 

• Knowledge of Cal. Elections Code Sections 23000 – 23004 and 21500 – 21509, including 

as amended by AB 1276, effective January 1, 2021. 

• Knowledge of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Political Reform Act, and Public Records Act 

requirements. 



3 
 

• Demonstrated experience and expertise in implementation and enforcement of the 

federal Voting Rights Act of 1965. 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS  
To assist the Commission in selecting Legal Counsel, please ensure that your proposal includes 
the following information:  
 
1. Firm Description. Provide a brief description of your firm and qualifications in the area of 
state and federal laws governing redistricting in California. Indicate the location of your main 
California office.  
 
2. Assigned Personnel. Identify your firm’s team for the assignment, specifically identifying the 
individual who would serve as the overall lead for the engagement and primary service provider 
in the Legal Counsel role.  Include only those persons who are actually expected to work on the 
engagement. Provide resumes for each participating team member, highlighting relevant 
experience to meet essential knowledge and abilities. 
 
3. Experience. Briefly describe the firm’s experience as Legal Counsel in California for local 
government entities or states related to state and federal laws governing redistricting and voter 
rights. Indicate where the proposed primary service provider contributed to the firm’s 
experience.  
 
4. Additional Information.  Please confirm that your firm has run a conflicts check and does not 
have any potential conflicts of interest.  Also, please review Elections Code Section 23003 and 
Santa Barbara County Code Sections 2-10.9A(5)(d) and (4)(d), and confirm that anyone assigned 
to provide services under the contract would not be disqualified under Elections Code Section 
23003 or Santa Barbara County Code Sections 2-10.9A(4)(d)(5) or (4)(d)(6). 
 
5. Fees. Please indicate your firm’s fees for the Legal Counsel role. To the extent hourly fees are 
proposed, please include an estimate of the total fee and/or expected range, and not-to-exceed 
amount. Also, please indicate what expenses you would bill in addition to the fee and a 
proposed cap.  
 
6. Form Contract.  A form of contract is attached.  If your firm has any proposed changes to the 
contract, please identify them as part of your firm’s response. 
 
SUBMISSION  
Please provide your proposal by e-mail to arierson@co.santa-barbara.ca.us no later than 
January 8, 2021 by 5:00 p.m.    
 
DISCLAIMERS  
It is noted that the Commission reserves the right to: reject any and all responses; cancel, 
modify or re-issue the RFP; negotiate with any, all or none of the respondents; and solicit best 
and final offers from any, all or none of the respondents. This RFP does not commit the 
Commission to negotiate a contract, nor does it obligate them to pay for any costs incurred in 
the preparation and submission of your responses or in the anticipation of a contract. The 
Commission reserves the right to recommend that the Board of Supervisors contract with any 



4 
 

of the firms responding to this RFP based on the Commission’s judgment in evaluating the 
firm’s proposal, including but not limited to its qualifications, capabilities and fee quote.  
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
So that we do not need to post and share responses to questions with proposers, we do not 
plan to have substantive conversations with any proposers.  
 
Thank you in advance for your participation in this process. 
 
 



HToschi
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 3

HToschi
Typewritten Text



C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org           www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 
 
 

Summary of Proceedings 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 

 

Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2021 
Time: 6:31 PM – 7:39 PM 
Place: Remote Virtual Participation Only 

 
Recordings of the Commission Meetings, Agendas, Supplemental Materials and Minutes of the 
Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission are available on the internet at: 
www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc  

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 
MRS. TILTON ANNOUNCED THE RESIGNATION OF COMMISSIONER KATZ. 
 
1. Commission Convened 
 
 Roll Call 
 Commissioners Present:  Bradley, Bray, Hudley, McClintock, Morris, Ochoa, Olmedo 

(late), Rios, Turley, Twibell 
 
 Commissioners Absent:  Katz 
 
ITEM 3 AND 4 WERE TAKEN OUT OF ORDER. 
 
3. Discussion and decision of staff’s recommendation to continue Interim Chair and Vice Chair for 

this meeting or nomination and selection of  Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
NO ACTION TAKEN. 
 
4. Disclosure of ex parte communications. 
 
NONE. 
 
2. Public Comment 

The Public Comment period is reserved for comments on items not on the Agenda and for matters 

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITIZENS INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION 

about:blank
about:blank


County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for February 3, 2021 
Page | 2 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission. The 
Commission may adopt reasonable regulations, including time limits, on public comments. The 
Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during the public comment 
section, except to decide whether to place a matter on the agenda of a future meeting.  

 
COMMISSIONER OLMEDO JOINED THE MEETING AT 6:36 PM. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
LEE HELLER, HEARD REGARDING REGRETS FOR COMMISSIONER KATZ RESIGNATION, 
AND APPRECIATION FOR HER SERVICE. 
 
SCOTT RAFFERTY, HEARD REGARDING HIS DISAPPROVAL AND CONCERNS FOR THE 
LEGAL COUNSEL SELECTION PROCESS. 
 
MARY HUDSON, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CHERYL TROSKY. 
 
PEGGY WILSON EXPERIENCED TECHNICAL DIFFICULTIES AND WAS ASKED TO SUBMIT 
WRITTEN COMMENTS. 
 
BARBARA SABASTINI, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CHERYL TROSKY FOR THE DISTRICT 1 
VACANCY. 
 
PEGGY WILSON, HEARD IN SUPPORT OF CHERYL TROSKY FOR THE DISTRICT 1 
VACANCY. 
 
WRITTEN COMMENT: 
 
CHRIS SKINNELL, NIELSEN MERKSAMER, ADDRESSING PHILIP SEYMOUR’S QUESTIONS 
ABOUT CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 
 
FREDRIC WOOCHER, RESPONSE TO THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST ALLEGATION. 
 
COMMISSIONER KATZ, LETTER OF RESIGNATION. 
 
MR. JOHNSON RESPONDED TO MR. RAFFERTY’S COMMENT AND CLARIFIED THE 
RECEIPT AND PROCESSING OF MR. SKINNELL’S EMAIL. 
 
5. Discussion, deliberation, and possible action regarding selecting Independent Legal Counsel. 
 
MR. CHURCHWELL GAVE AN OVERVIEW OF LEGAL COUNSEL SELECTION, AND 
CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS WITH STRUMWASSER & WOOCHER.  THE HOURLY RATES 
WERE REDUCED FROM $575 TO $525, THE NEXT HIGHEST RATE REDUCED FROM $525 TO 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for February 3, 2021 
Page | 3 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

$475, SET AN OVERALL $200,000 CAP, AND IF DEPLETED, THE COMMISSION AND LEGAL 
COUNSEL WILL NEGOTIATE AT THAT TIME. 
 
COMMISSIONER TURLEY INQUIRED ABOUT A SUMMARIZATION OF THE LETTER FROM 
MR. WOOCHER.  MR. CHURCHWELL SUGGESTED INVITING MR. WOOCHER TO EXPLAIN 
AND ANSWER QUESTIONS REGARDING THE LETTER. 
 
MR. WOOCHER PROVIDED AN EXPLANATION FOR COMMENTS ABOUT 
DISQUALIFICATION DUE TO CONFLICT OF INTEREST, REGARDING PREVIOUS 
REPRESENTATION OF A FORMER COUNTY SUPERVISOR IN 2008. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
LEE HELLER, HEARD AND COMPLIMENTED MR. WOOCHER’S IMPRESSIVE RESPONSE ON 
SHORT NOTICE. 
 
ANDY CALDWELL, HEARD REGARDING NIELSEN MERKSAMER, THE ORDINANCE, AND 
CONCERNS ABOUT STRUMWASSER & WOOCHER. 
 
RECESSED THE MEETING FOR CLOSED SESSION AT 7:07 PM. 
 
6. Consideration of the appointment of an independent contractor who functions as an officer or  

an employee of a local agency pursuant to Section 54957(b) of the Government Code.  

Title: Independent Legal Counsel  
 
RECONVENED THE MEETING IN OPEN SESSION AT 7:25 PM. 
 
7. Announcement of any reportable action taken in closed session. 
 
NO REPORTABLE ACTION. 
 
COMMISSIONER MORRIS STATED THE COMMISSION WILL NEGOTIATE A PRICE AND 
MAKE A RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNTY FOR FINAL CONTRACT APPROVAL. 
 
MOTION TO RECOMMEND STRUMWASSER & WOOCHER FOR LEGAL COUNSEL. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  10 AYES 
 
8. Discussion and possible action regarding future agenda items. 
 

● DISTRICT 1 VACANCY AND INTERVIEWS (FEBRUARY 22) 
- CANDIDATES:  JAMES SCORSO, CHERYL TROSKY, DANIEL MONTELLO (USE 

DECEMBER 8 INTERVIEW), AND CLAUDIA KNUDSON (USE DECEMBER 9 



County of Santa Barbara 
2020 Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission 
Summary of Proceedings for February 3, 2021 
Page | 4 
 

C/O County Executive Office: 105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 406 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
email: redistricting@countyofsb.org         www.countyofsb.org/redistricting.sbc 

 

INTERVIEW) 
● OUTREACH STRUCTURE (DIGITAL ACCESS, BUDGET, BIG PICTURE, DETAILS) 
● SUPPORT TOOLS 
 

9. Discussion and possible action regarding scheduling future meetings. 
  
THE COMMISSIONERS DISCUSSED MEETING THE 1ST AND 3RD WEDNESDAY AT 6 PM, AND 
CONFIRMED THE NEXT MEETING DATES: 
 

● MARCH 3, 6 PM 
● MARCH 17, 6 PM  

 
ADJOURNMENT – The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, February 22, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 



HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 4

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text



No. 12-1080

IN THE

II

I
S~e_ _ cour~ u.s. -

FILED

..’.’._’~ ~- 2013

I QFFICE OF THE CLERKcoup, u.s.

STEVEN PAPPAS,

DOREEN FARR,

Petitioner,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR A WRIT OF CERTIORARI TO THE

CALIFORNIA COURT OF APPEAL FOR THE

SECOND APPELLATE DISTRICT, DIVISION Six

BRIEF IN OPPOSITION

PHILIP A. SEYMOUR

4894 Ogram Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105
(805) 692-9335

FREDRIC D. WOOCHER

Counsel of Record
STRUMWASSER ~ WOOCHER LLP

10940 Wilshire Boulevard,
Suite 2000
Los Angeles, CA 90024
(310) 576-1233
fwoocher@strumwooch.com

Counsel for Respondent

May 3, 2013

247403

COUNSEL PRESS

(800) 274-3321 . (800) 359-6859





o

o

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

Does the United States Supreme Court have
jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 2101(c) to review a
decision of the California Court of Appeal awarding
attorney fees to Respondent under California Code
of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 when the decision of the
Court of Appeal holding that Respondent was entitled
to recover her attorney fees pursuant to that statute
"as a matter of law" was issued in December 2010,
more than two years before the Petition for Writ of
Certiorari was filed?

Does the United States Supreme Court have
jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1257(a) to review a
decision of the California Court of Appeal awarding
attorney fees to Respondent under California Code
of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 when Petitioner never
raised, and the state courts therefore never addressed,
any federal constitutional objections or other federal
questions at any time in the state court proceedings?

Does the award of attorney fees to Respondent and
against Petitioner under California’s "private attorney
general" statute, California Code of Civil Procedure
§ 1021.5, violate the Due Process Clause of the Fifth
and Fourteenth Amendment to the United States
Constitution when the statute sets forth clear and
explicit criteria that must be satisfied for entitlement
to any fee award and those criteria have been judicially
interpreted and applied in hundreds of published
California appellate decisions over the past 35 years?



ii

Does the award of attorney fees to Respondent for
vindicating important public rights by successfully
defending against Petitioner’s meritless challenge
to the lawfully cast ballots of thousands of voters
violate Petitioner’s First Amendment right to engage
in political speech or to petition the government for
redress of grievances?



iii

PARTIES TO THE PROCEEDINGS

The only parties to the proceedings below were
Petitioner Steven Pappas and Respondent Doreen Farr.



iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

QUESTIONS PRESENTED ......................i

PARTIES TO THE PROCEEDINGS ..............iii

TABLE OF CONTENTS .........................iv

TABLE OF CITED AUTHORITIES ..............vi

INTRODUCTION ................................1

A. The Petition is Untimely By More
Than Two Years .......................1

B. Petitioner Never Presented His
Purported Federal Constitutional
Questions At Any Time in the State
Courts ................................ 2

C. The Decision that This Court Is
Being Asked to Review Was an
Unpublished Opinion of the State
Court of Appeal that Affects Only Two
People - Petitioner and Respondent .......3

D. The Factual Premise Underlying the
Petition Is Completely False .............5

E. The Petition Presents No Genuine
Federal Question Meriting Review
By This Court .........................6



V

Table of Contents

Page

STATEMENT OF THE CASE ....................8

The Election Contest ...................9

The Attorney Fee Award ...............11

REASONS FOR DENYING THE PETITION ......14

III.

THE PETITION IS UNTIMELY ...........14

PETITIONER NEVER RAISED
HIS PURPORTED FEDERAL
CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIMS IN
STATE COURT ..........................16

THE DECISION BELOW RAISES NO
SUBSTANTIAL DUE PROCESS OR
FIRST AMENDMENT ISSUE .............20

A. There is No Factual or Legal Basis for
a Due Process Claim ...................20

B. The Decision Below Presents No
Legitimate First Amendment Issue ......23

CONCLUSION ................................. 28



vi

TABLE OF CITED AUTHORITIES

Page

CASES

Adams v. Robertson,
520 U.S. 83 (1997) ...........................2, 16

Adoption of Joshua S.,
42 Cal. 4th 945, 174 P.3d 192 (2008) ..........22, 24

Baldwin v. Reese,
541 U.S. 27 (2004) .............................18

Bill Johnson Restaurants, Inc. v.
National Labor Relations Board,
461 U.S. 731 (1983) .............................8

Board of Directors of Rotary International v.
Rotary Club of Duarte,
481 U.S. 537 (1987) ............................16

California Motor Transport Co. v.
Trucking Unlimited,
404 U.S. 508 (1972) ............................26

Center for Biological Diversity v.
County of San Bernardino,
188 Cal. App. 4th 603, 115 Cal. Rptr. 3d 762 (2010)..23

City of Carmel-By-the-Sea v.
Board of Supervisors,
183 Cal. App. 3d 229, 227 Cal. Rptr. 899 (1986) ....24



vii

Cited Authorities

Page

Conservatorship of Whitley,
50 Cal. 4th 1206, 241 P.3d 840 (2010) ..........11, 24

Graham v. DaimlerChrysler Corp.,
34 Cal. 4th 553, 101 P.3d 140 (2005) ..............23

Hoffman Estates, Inc. v.
Flipside, Hoffman Estates,
455 U.S. 489 (1982) ..........................7, 20

Howell v. Mississippi,
543 U.S. 440 (2005) ......................3, 16, 18

MeadWestvaco Corp. v.
Illinois Dept. of Revenue,
553 U.S. 16 (2008) ..........................16, 19

Olney v. Municipal Court,
133 Cal. App. 3d 455, 184 Cal. Rptr. 78 (1982) .....24

Opdyk v. California Horse Racing Bd.,
34 Cal. App. 4th 1826, 41 Cal. Rptr. 2d 263 (1995)..18

Otto v. Los Angeles Unified School Dist.,
106 Cal. App. 4th 328, 130 Cal. Rptr. 2d 512
(2003) ....................................... 23

Oxley Stave Co. v. Butler County,
166 U.S. 648 (1897) ............................18



Cited Authorities

Page

Pappas v. Farr ("Pappas I"),
No. B215239, 2010 WL 4017063
(Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Oct. 14, 2010) ......5-6, 10

Pappas v. Farr ("Pappas H"),
No. B219570, 2010 WL 5158272
(Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Dec. 21, 2010) ....passim

Pappas v. Farr ("Pappas III"),
No. B237030, 2012 WL 4425112
(Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Sept. 26, 2012) ....2, 12, 15

Webb v. Webb,
451 U.S. 493 (1981) ............................16

Wilson v. San Luis Obispo County Democratic
Central Committee,
192 Cal. App. 4th 918, 121 Cal. Rptr. 3d 731 (2011)..24

Woodland Hills Residents Assn. v.
City Council of Los Angeles,
23 Cal. 3d 917, 593 P.2d 200 (1979) ...........22, 24

Yee v. City of Escondido,
503 U.S. 519 (1992) ..........................2, 16

CONSTITUTION, STATUTES AND RULES

U.S. Const. amend. I ........................passim

U.S. Const. amend. XIV ..........................20



ix

Cited Authorities

Page

28 U.S.C. § 1257 ...............................3, 15

28 U.S.C. § 2101(c) .............................1, 15

28 U.S.C. § 2403(b) ............................7, 19

42 U.S.C. § 1988 .................................21

Sup. Ct. R. 10 .................................... 4

Sup. Ct. R. 13 ................................. 1, 15

Sup. Ct. R. 15 .................................... 8

Sup. Ct. R. 29.4(c) ................................7

California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 ....passim

California Elections Code § 15630 .................26

California Elections Code § 16000 ..................9

California Rules of Court, rule 8.29(c)(1) ............19

California Rules of Court, rule 8.204(a)(1)(B) ........18

California Rules of Court, rule 8.264 ...............14





INTRODUCTION

Petitioner Steven Pappas seeks review of an
unpublished opinion of the California Court of Appeal
holding that the trial court did not abuse its discretion
in determining the amount of attorney fees awarded
to Respondent Doreen Farr under California’s "private
attorney general" statute, codified in California Code
of Civil Procedure § 1021.5. The Petition for Writ of
Certiorari ("Petition") meets none of the procedural or
substantive requirements for review in this Court. To the
contrary, the Petition can and should be denied on each of
the following grounds:

A. The Petition is Untimely By More Than Two
Years

The Petition contends that the decision awarding
attorney fees to Respondent under California Code
of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 violated Petitioner’s due
process and First Amendment rights. The decision that
awarded attorney fees to Respondent, however, was
issued in December 2010 - more than two gears before
this Petition was filed - when the California Court of
Appeal "conclude[d] that as a matter of law Farr is entitled
to an award of attorney fees pursuant to Code of Civil
Procedure section 1021.5." Pappas v. Farr, No. B219570,
2010 WL 5158272, *3 (Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Dec. 21,
2010) ("Pappas H"). Petitioner never sought review of
that decision in either the California Supreme Court or
this Court, meaning that the Petition does not satisfy
the jurisdictional requirements of 28 U.S.C. § 2101(c) or
Supreme Court Rule 13.



2

The decision that Petitioner now challenges in his
Petition is a subsequent decision of the Court of Appeal
affirming the trial court’s determination on remand
solely of the reasonable amount of attorney fees to be
awarded to Respondent. Pappas v. Farr, No. B237030,
2012 WL 4425112 (Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Sept. 26,
2012) ("Pappas III"), Pet. App. at 5a-14a. As can readily
be seen from the opinion itself, the only issues raised and
addressed by the Court of Appeal in this decision involved
whether the trial court had abused its discretion in failing
to reduce the amount of the fee award on three discrete
state-law grounds argued by Petitioner. No questions
concerning Petitioner’s liability for a fee award under
California Code of Civil Procedure section 1021.5 were
ever presented or decided in the opinion.

Bo Petitioner Never Presented His Purported
Federal Constitutional Questions At Any Time
in the State Courts

This Court has consistently held that it will not
grant certiorari to review a state court decision involving
purported issues of federal law unless those federal issues
were actually addressed by, or at least properly presented
to, the state court that rendered the decision the Court
has been asked to review. E.g., Adams v. Robertson, 520
U.S. 83, 86-87 (1997); Yee v. City of Escondido, 503 U.S.
519, 533 (1992). That did not occur here. The state court
decision that Petitioner proffers for review does nothing
more than affirm the trial court’s order determining the
reasonable amount of fees to be awarded to Respondent.
As the decision makes clear, no federal law issues were
considered or decided by the court. Pet. App. at 5a-14a.
That is because Petitioner never raised any issue of federal



law whatsoever at any time in the state court proceedings
on the attorney fee award in this case.

While Petitioner now quotes a few isolated passages
from his state court briefs as supposed evidence that the
federal questions were indeed raised below, these passages
were merely excerpted from policy arguments that
Petitioner made in support of his proposed interpretation
of the state statute at issue. Petitioner at no time in the
state court proceedings cited any federal statute, treaty,
or constitutional provision as a defense against the fee
award, much less put forward any actual legal argument
supported by case law that the attorney fee award
requested by Respondent was barred or limited by federal
law. See Howell v. Mississippi, 543 U.S. 440, 442-444
(2005) (in order to establish that a federal question was
properly presented to the state court in accordance with
28 U.S.C. § 1257, it is generally necessary for Petitioner
either to have labeled his claim "federal" or to have cited
in conjunction with the claim the federal source of law on
which he relies or a case deciding such a claim on federal
grounds). Petitioner’s contention that he raised the federal
constitutional questions "at every stage of the proceedings
below," Pet. at 6, is not just an exaggeration. It is a flat
out falsehood.

Co The Decision that This Court Is Being Asked
to Review Was an Unpublished Opinion of the
State Court of Appeal that .Affects Only Two
People - Petitioner and Respondent

It is well understood that discretionary review by
this Court on writs of certiorari is not intended to correct
errors in individual cases, but rather to address broad



4

issues of public importance, to decide critical questions
of federal law that should be settled by this Court, or
to resolve conflicts in the decisions of the relevant lower
courts on important federal questions. Supreme Court
Rule 10. As the Clerk of the Court cautions petitioners
who are proceeding without the assistance of counsel:
"The primary concern of the Supreme Court is not to
correct errors in lower court decisions, but to decide cases
presenting issues of importance beyond the particular
facts and parties involved." Office of the Supreme Court
Clerk, Guide for Prospective Indigent Petitioners for Writs
of Certiorari (Oct. 2012), at 1.

Yet the Petition in this case seeks review of an
unpublished opinion of an intermediate appellate court
that has no precedential value even within California,
much less in any other state, and which therefore impacts
exactly two people in this world - Petitioner Pappas and
Respondent Farr. As is stated in the warning that is
prominently displayed on the top of the first page of the
opinion itself, "California Rules of Court, rule 8.1115(a),
prohibits courts and parties from citing or relying on
opinions not certified for publication or ordered published
.... This opinion has not been certified for publication
or ordered published for purposes of rule 8.1115." Pet.
App. at 5a (emphasis added). All of Petitioner’s arguments
regarding the supposed "chilling effect" of the decision
and its asserted impact on other candidates for office
throughout the country are therefore nothing more
than overblown hyperbole. This was a routine appeal
of the amount of a trial court’s attorney fee award that
was reviewed for abuse of discretion under established
state-law standards. The state court of appeal itself did
not deem its decision to be significant enough to warrant



publication, and for that reason, the opinion cannot be cited
or relied upon as a precedent in any other case or context.
Under these circumstances, the decision certainly does
not merit review by this Court under its discretionary,
and extraordinary, certiorari jurisdiction.

D. The Factual Premise Underlying the Petition
Is Completely False

The Petition’s principal legal argument is
that "California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5
unconstitutionally burdens and infringes on core political
speech when, as here, it is applied to punish individuals
who bring meritorious election challenges." Pet. at 24.
Underlying this legal argument is the factual premise that
Petitioner Pappas was a selfless crusader who "uncovered
evidence of serious and criminal election fraud," Pet.
at 10, and whose legal challenge, although ultimately
unsuccessful in overturning the result of his election, "was
still proven to be meritorious because it had the effect of
placing serious flaws in the election and voter registration
systems in front of the court and the public," id. at 17.

Nothing could be further from the truth. The trial
court judge who presided over Petitioner’s lawsuit found
that "Pappas has failed to produce evidence of even one
isolated incident of fraud or other illegal voting in this
case .... There has similarly been a complete failure
of proof as to any illegal votes cast by voters as a result
of innocent mistakes, misunderstanding or ignorance
of legal requirements, or other inadvertent errors by
voters or election officials." Superior Court’s Findings of
Fact and Conclusions of Law, March 26, 2009, p. 23:6-13
(emphasis added), quoted in Pappas v. Farr, No. B215239,



2010 WL 4017063, "1 (Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Oct. 14,
2010) ("Pappas I") and CT1201A.1 Indeed, the trial judge
found that Petitioner’s claims of election fraud were so
completely devoid of merit that they were brought in bad
faith: "Given the complete lack of evidence supporting the
allegations of fraud made by contestant Pappas, the Court
can only conclude that these allegations were frivolous and
tantamount to an intentional misleading of the Court."
Superior Court’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law, 3/26/2009, p. 23:14-16 (emphasis added), quoted at
CT2 308:18-21.

In short, this case simply does not raise the issue that
the Petition claims to present. The attorney fee award
below did not "punish" Petitioner Pappas for bringing a
"meritorious," although unsuccessful, election challenge.
Rather, consistent with decades of California law, the
fee award merely compensated Respondent Farr for
the financial burden she was forced to bear in order to
successfully defend the constitutional rights of thousands
of innocent voters against Petitioner’s frivolous attack.

E. The Petition Presents No Genuine Federal
Question Meriting Review By This Court

Even if the Petition’s numerous jurisdictional
defects could be disregarded, there is simply no genuine
constitutional (or other) basis for Petitioner’s challenge to

1. The Petition fails to include the trial court’s Findings of
Fact and Conclusions of Law, despite their obvious relevance to
Petitioner’s present claims. In fact, almost none of the record
of Petitioner’s election contest was included in the record of his
state court appeal of the attorney fee award, because - as stated
above - the grounds for his appeal in state court were completely
unrelated to the claims he now presents in the Petition.



the fee award below. The Petition purports to raise two
constitutional questions: (1) whether California’s private
attorney general statute (Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5)
as applied to election contests violates due process because
it is "insolubly vague and ambiguous," Pet. at 20; and
(2) whether the statute as applied to election contests
violates the First Amendment by unduly burdening the
right to petition and core political speech, id. at 21-29.2
But Petitioner cites no case law from any jurisdiction
that even indirectly touches on these specific issues, let
alone case law that actually supports an argument that
private-attorney-general fee awards in election contest
cases are unconstitutional.

In support of his due process argument, Petitioner
cites only a single case (Hoffman Estates, Inc. v. Flipside,
Hoffman Estates, 455 U.S. 489 (1982)), and only for the
generic proposition that unduly vague laws may violate due
process by impermissibly delegating basic policy matters
to judges for resolution on an ad hoc and subjective basis.
Petitioner, however, does not identify any specific language
in Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 that he contends is
unduly vague or that confers excessive discretion upon
California judges, nor does he discuss the considerable
body of California case law that has amplified upon and
given precise definition to the statutory criteria governing
fee awards under Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5. Equally
important, Petitioner does not identify a single state or

2. Although the Petition thus plainly "draw[s] into question"
the constitutionality of California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5,
it does not appear that Petitioner either advised this Court that
28 U.S.C. § 2403(b) may apply or served a copy of the Petition on
the California Attorney General. See Supreme Court Rule 29.4(c).
Noncompliance with the Court’s rules should be yet another
ground for denying the Petition.



8

federal case in any jurisdiction that has overturned or
even seriously questioned the constitutionality of any
private attorney general statute - or of any other attorney
fee statute, for that matter - on due process grounds.

Petitioner’s First Amendment arguments fare no
better. This Court and many others have long recognized
that "baseless litigation is not immunized by the First
Amendment right to petition." Bill Johnson Restaurants,
Inc. v. National Labor Relations Board, 461 U.S. 731,
743 (1983). Petitioner nevertheless bandies about various
First Amendment catch-phrases and bromides as if they
were a magic charm against attorney fee awards in any
context. Again, however, he does not cite a single case
from any jurisdiction in which a private attorney general
statute or other comparable attorney fee statute has been
challenged - let alone successfully challenged - on First
Amendment grounds. Petitioner has failed to show that
there is any colorable merit in his constitutional claims,
that there is any substantial uncertainty or disagreement
in the law that needs to be resolved by this Court, or that
this would in any event be an appropriate case in which
to do so.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Respondent recognizes that under Rule 15, the
brief in opposition should identify and respond to any
perceived misstatement of fact or law in the petition. The
problem in this case is where to begin. Except for such
basic procedural facts as the dates of the various state
court decisions below, there is very little in the Petition’s
statement of the case that is true. Accordingly, in the
following sections, Respondent will address only the



9

more important instances in which Petitioner’s assertions
deviate from the record.

A. The Election Contest

The underlying lawsuit in this case challenged the
results of an election held for County Supervisor for the
Third Supervisorial District in Santa Barbara County,
California, in November, 2008. Although elections for
federal, state, and local government offices were all
consolidated on a single ballot, the election for county
supervisor was not a "federal election," as the Petition
erroneously suggests in the "Questions Presented."

Petitioner Pappas lost the supervisorial election by
806 votes, or approximately 2% of the votes cast - not
a particularly close election by any accepted standard.
Petitioner nevertheless demanded and obtained a recount
under California law. The recount changed the election
result by a grand total of one vote. Petitioner then filed a
judicial election contest, naming Respondent Farr as the
defendant, pursuant to California Elections Code § 16000
et seq. The election contest was resolved adversely to
Petitioner following a five-day bench trial that was held
over the course of three months. Contrary to Petitioner’s
assertion that he "uncovered instances of clear voter
fraud" and that he "did not prevail simply because he
could not identify a sufficient number of votes cast by
ineligible voters to overturn the results," Pet. at 3, the trial
judge found that Petitioner had failed to provide credible
evidence of even one fraudulent or otherwise illegal vote.
Superior Court’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law, March 26, 2009, p. 5, ¶ 13; p. 23, ¶¶ 17-18, p. 31, ¶ 30.



10

Petitioner continues to assert that his election contest
uncovered "numerous troubling irregularities," such as
the existence of precincts in which the number of votes cast
exceeded the number of registered voters. Pet. at 9. The
County elections official explained at trial, however, that
this anomaly occurred because a large number of first-time
student voters who were unsure about the location of their
assigned polling places lawfully cast provisional ballots at
other polling places; after verifying that the provisional
voter was properly registered and qualified to vote for all
of the contests listed on the ballot, the elections officials
tallied the vote and recorded it as having been cast in the
precinct in which it was submitted, even though the voter
was registered in a different precinct. It was therefore not
particularly surprising that in the high-turnout November
2008 Presidential election, some precincts - due to the
addition of a large number of these provisional ballots -
reported having more ballots cast than registered voters.
Far from evidencing any "troubling irregularities" in the
conduct of the election, Petitioner’s resurrection of this
issue in the Petition merely demonstrates his penchant,
in the words of the trial court, for making unsupported
voter fraud claims that are "tantamount to an intentional
misleading of the Court." Superior Court’s Findings of
Fact and Conclusions of Law, March 26, 2009, p. 23:14-16.

Petitioner appealed the Superior Court’s decision in
his election contest to the state Court of Appeal, which
unanimously affirmed the trial court’s decision in all
respects. Pappas I, 2010 WL 4017063 (Cal. Ct. App.
unpub, opn. Oct. 14, 2010). Petitioner did not seek review
of the Court of Appeal’s decision in either the California
Supreme Court or this Court.



11

B. The Attorney Fee Award

Following the conclusion of the election contest,
Respondent moved for an award of attorney fees under
California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5. Respondent
contended that her successful defense of the voting
rights of thousands of student voters whose ballots had
been challenged by Petitioner in the election contest
(1) vindicated important public rights; (2) conferred a
significant benefit on a large class of persons; and (3) that
the costs of the litigation substantially exceeded the value
of her financial stake in its outcome, thus satisfying the
three basic criteria governing fee awards under the state
statute. The trial court agreed - and Petitioner did not
seriously dispute - that Respondent’s actions satisfied the
first two statutory criteria, but the court denied the fee
motion on the ground that Respondent Farr’s personal
non-economic interests in having her election victory
confirmed by the court precluded an award under the
third criterion.

Upon Respondent’s appeal, however, the Court of
Appeal reversed, relying upon the California Supreme
Court’s decision in Conservatorship of Whitley, 50 Cal.
4th 1206, 241 P.3d 840 (2010), which clarified that a
litigant’s asserted personal non-pecuniary interests in
the outcome of a lawsuit were not relevant under Code
of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, which focused instead on the
financial burdens and incentives involved in litigating
the case. Finding that "no rational person would have
undertaken defense of [Petitioner’s] action for financial
benefit," the Court of Appeal held that Respondent Farr’s
successful defense of the student voters’ rights entitled
her to an award of attorney fees pursuant to Code of



12

Civil Procedure § 1021.5 "as a matter of law." (Pappas II,
2010 WL 5158272, at *3 (Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Dec.
21, 2010); CT2 317-322. The Court of Appeal therefore
reversed and remanded the case to the trial court solely
for a determination of the reasonable amount of attorney
fees to be awarded to Respondent. Ibid. Significantly,
Petitioner did not seek review - either by the California
Supreme Court or by this Court- of the Court of Appeal’s
holding that Respondent was entitled to recover her
attorney fees from Petitioner "as a matter of law" under
Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5.

On remand, Petitioner did not oppose Respondent’s
entitlement to a fee award, but vigorously objected to
the amount of the requested award, arguing that the
base "lodestar" should be reduced on various state law
grounds. The trial court, rejecting most but not all of
Petitioner’s arguments, awarded Respondent $528,657.50
in costs and attorney fees. See Pet. App. at 15a-20a.
Petitioner once again appealed, renewing his contention
that the amount of the fee award should be reduced
pursuant to state law. The Court of Appeal, in yet another
unanimous unpublished decision, addressed and rejected
all three arguments presented by Petitioner on appeal:
(1) that the trial court should have reduced the fee award
to Respondent to account for her alleged pecuniary
interest in the litigation; (2) that the trial court should
have reduced the fee award to account for Respondent’s
alleged non-pecuniary personal interests in the election
contest outcome; and (3) that the fee award should have
been reduced due to what Petitioner characterized as
Respondent’s counsel’s "block billing." Pappas III, 2012
WL 4425112 (Cal. Ct. App. unpub, opn. Sept. 26, 2012);
Pet. App. at 5a-14a.



13

At no time during the course of this latest appeal did
Petitioner challenge Respondent’s entitlement to a fee
award under Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, on any
ground - state or federal. To the contrary, Petitioner
specifically emphasized in his briefing to the appellate
court that the instant appeal concerned only the amount
of fees awarded to Respondent:

"Pappas briefly clarifies the scope of this
appeal .... Pappas does not seek to relitigate
the merits of the election contest which has
already been finally determined, nor does
Pappas seek to relitigate Farr’s entitlement
to an award of attorneys fees. The scope of
this appeal is limited to issues regarding the
amount awarded as attorneys fees to Farr."
Appellant’s Reply Brief, at 2, filed June 12,
2012, in Pappas III, 2012 WL 4425112 (Cal.
Ct. App. unpub, opn. Sept. 26, 2012) (emphasis
in original).

Petitioner unsuccessfully sought rehearing by
the Court of Appeal, see Pet. App. at 2a-3a,~ and his
subsequent petition for review by the California Supreme
Court was summarily denied on December 12, 2012. Pet.
App. at la. This Petition for a Writ of Certiorari followed
on March 1, 2013.

3. In response to the Petition for Rehearing, the Court of
Appeal deleted one sentence from its opinion that Petitioner
considered objectionable, but made no substantive change to its
decision. Ibid.



14

REASONS FOR DENYING THE PETITION

I. THE PETITION IS UNTIMELY

The Petition argues that California Code of Civil
Procedure § 1021.5 is unconstitutional because "the
test for whether fees should be granted" is "vague,
unintelligible, and wholly bereft of clear standards for its
application in an election contest," Pet. at 16, and because
an award of attorney fees under the statute violates the
election contestant’s First Amendment right to petition
and burdens his or her core political speech, id. at 21-29.
The Petition does not contend that a fee award only above
a certain amount is unconstitutional, but that any award
of attorney fees against the loser of an election contest is
unconstitutional.

The decision holding that Petitioner was liable for an
award of attorney fees in his unsuccessful election contest,
however, was issued by the California Court of Appeal
on December 21, 2010 - more than two years before the
instant Petition was filed. Pappas II, 2010 WL 5158272.
As set forth above, it was in that decision that the Court
of Appeal determined that Respondent Farr was entitled
to recover fees from Petitioner Pappas under Code of
Civil Procedure § 1021.5 "as a matter of law." Id., 2010
WL 5158272, at *3. If Petitioner wished to challenge the
constitutionality of imposing a fee award against him
under Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, it was incumbent
upon him to raise and pursue his constitutional arguments
in that appeal. Yet he failed to do so, and under California
law, the decision in Pappas H became final 30 days after it
was issued. Cal. Rules of Court, rule 8.264. Petitioner did



15

not seek review of that decision in the California Supreme
Court, which in and of itself constitutes jurisdictional
grounds for denying the Petition. 28 U.S.C. § 1257(a). But
even if one were to ignore this defect, the current Petition
for a Writ of Certiorari is two years too late under 28
U.S.C. § 2101(c) and Supreme Court Rule 13.

By contrast, the Court of Appeal decision that the
Petition now seeks review of- Pappas III- is simply that
court’s affirmance of the trial court’s order setting the
amount of fees to be awarded to Respondent in compliance
with the appellate court’s earlier 2010 decision. As noted
above, in his briefing to the Court of Appeal, Petitioner
himself insisted that "[t]he scope of this appeal is limited
to issues regarding the amount awarded as attorneys
fees to Farr," and that he specifically was not seeking to
relitigate the issue of Respondent’s entitlement to a fee
award under Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5. Appellant’s
Reply Brief, at 2 (emphasis in original). Neither in the
state courts nor in his Petition to this Court, however,
does Petitioner contend that either the amount of the fee
award or the manner in which it was determined violates
his due process or First Amendment rights.

In sum, it is at least two years too late for Petitioner to
reach back and seek this Court’s review of the state court
decision which he actually complains about- the Court of
Appeal’s decision in Pappas H holding Petitioner liable
for the attorney fees incurred by Respondent in defending
against his meritless election contest "as a matter of law"
under California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5.



16

II. PETITIONER NEVER RAISED HIS PURPORTED
FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIMS IN
STATE COURT

This Court, with rare exceptions, has insisted that
federal questions presented in a petition for a writ of
certiorari of a state court judgment be questions that were
actually addressed, or at least seriously raised, in the state
courts. MeadWestvaco Corp. v. Illinois Dept. of Revenue,
553 U.S. 16, 31 (2008); Adams v. Robertson, supra, 520
U.S. at 86-87; Yee v. City of Escondido, supra, 503 U.S. at
533; Board of Directors of Rotary International v. Rotary
Club of Duarte, 481 U.S. 537, 549-550 (1987). Whether
or not this limitation is jurisdictional,t the interests of
justice are not served by reviewing purported federal
issues that were never addressed by the state courts or
actually litigated by the parties below, and when there
consequently has been no development whatsoever of a
record relevant to their resolution. This is precisely such
a case.

Even a casual perusal of the record of the state court
proceedings below confirms that no federal question
of any kind was addressed by the California Supreme
Court or the lower state courts in any of the decisions

4. Compare Webb v. Webb, 451 U.S. 493,496-497 (1981) ("It is
a long-settled rule that the jurisdiction of the Court to re-examine
the final judgment of a state court can arise only if the record as
a whole shows either expressly or by clear implication that the
federal claim was adequately presented in the state system.") with
Howell v. Mississippi, supra, 543 U.S. at 445-446 (Court "need
not decide today ’whether our requirement that a federal claim
be addressed or properly presented in state court is jurisdictional
or prudential’").



17

that Petitioner presents for review. See Pet. Apps. A-D.
Indeed, no federal question was presented or addressed
in the earlier Court of Appeal decision that originally
awarded attorney fees to Respondent Farr, either. See
Pappas II, 2010 WL 5158272. The only issues raised and
addressed in any of these decisions concerned the proper
interpretation and application of Code of Civil Procedure
§ 1021.5 under California law. No federal question of any
kind - most certainly not the constitutional claims that
Petitioner now asserts in his Petition - was raised at any
time in any of the trial or appellate proceedings relating
to Respondent’s fee motion. Not in the California Supreme
Court, not in the California Court of Appeal, and not in
the trial court; not directly and not indirectly; not in the
text of any brief, nor even in any footnote. Not in any form
whatsoever.

How, in light of the foregoing, the Petition can in good
faith assert that "Petitioner raised the constitutional
questions he now asks this Court to resolve at every
stage of the proceedings below," Pet. at 6 (emphasis
added), is utterly baffling. Unlike Petitioner, the record
does not lie. The Petition quotes several passages from
Petitioner’s briefs below in an effort to establish that he
did in fact somehow raise his federal constitutional claims
in state court, but even on their face, the quoted passages
demonstrate that they were nothing more than policy
arguments concerning the alleged unfairness of requiring
Petitioner to reimburse Respondent for the attorney fees
she was forced to incur in defending the voting rights of
thousands of Santa Barbara County voters against his
baseless challenge. And although Petitioner now suggests
that these policy arguments "implicat[ed] the significant
constitutional issues raised in the instant petition," Pet.



18

at 6 (emphasis added), it is undeniable that Petitioner did
not actually assert at any time in state court that the fee
award to Respondent should be barred or reduced on
constitutional grounds. See Oxley Stave Co. v. Butler
County, 166 U.S. 648, 655 (1897) (a party’s intent to
invoke the Federal Constitution must be "unmistakably"
declared, and the statutory requirement is not met if "the
purpose of the party to assert a Federal right is left to
mere inference").

This Court has made clear what a party needs to do in
order to properly present a federal claim in state court: "A
litigant wishing to raise a federal issue can easily indicate
the federal law basis for his claim in a state-court petition
or brief.., by citing in conjunction with the claim the
federal source of law on which he relies or a case deciding
such a claim on federal grounds, or by simply labeling the
claim ’federal.’" Baldwin v. Reese, 541 U.S. 27, 32 (2004),
quoted in Howell v. Mississippi, supra, 543 U.S. at 444.
Petitioner did none of the above. At no time did he even
cite to any provision of the United States Constitution,
nor to any case law applying the Due Process Clause or
the First Amendment in any context, much less articulate
any argument based on these constitutional provisions or
case law. Under California law, in order to fairly raise an
argument in the appellate courts or the state Supreme
Court, a litigant’s briefs must clearly articulate the issue
under a separate heading and must present argument
on the issue supported by appropriate authority. Opdyk
v. California Horse Racing Bd., 34 Cal.App.4th 1826,
1830-1831, n. 4, 41 Cal.Rptr.2d 263 (1995); Cal. Rules of
Court, rule 8.204(a)(1)(B). Petitioner not only failed to do
this with respect to the federal claims that he now seeks
to raise in the Petition, but he failed even to allude to any



19

possible constitutional or other federal law issue in so much
as a footnote in any papers filed below.

Petitioner’s failure to have presented his federal
claims in the state court is especially problematic because
he now challenges the constitutionality of a state statute,
California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, without ever
having notified the California Attorney General of this
claim or given the state an opportunity to defend the
constitutionality of its legislation. As this Court cautioned
in MeadWestvaco Corp. v. Illinois Dept. of Revenue,
supra, the case for judicial restraint is "particularly
compelling" when resolution of an issue may impact the
law of a state, but the state has neither appeared in the
case nor been given notice that the constitutionality of
its legislation is at issue. 553 U.S. at 31. Under California
law, if any appellate brief or petition "[q]uestions the
constitutionality of a state statute," a copy must be served
on the California Attorney General. California Rules of
Court, rule 8.29(c)(1).5 Petitioner never served any of
his pleadings or briefs below on the California Attorney
General, however, further confirming that he never
questioned the constitutionality of Code of Civil Procedure
§ 1021.5 in the state court proceedings.

It should thus come as no surprise that no federal
issues were ever addressed in the state Court of Appeal
decision that Petitioner complains about, much less in
the summary denial of Petitioner’s Petition for Review in

5. Cf. 28 U.S.C. § 2403(b) (in any proceeding in a federal
court in which the constitutionality of a state statute is "drawn in
question," the court shall certify such fact to the state Attorney
General and shall permit the State to intervene for argument on
the question of constitutionality).



2O

the California Supreme Court. In short, there is no state
court decision involving federal law issues for this Court
to review.

HI. THE DECISION BELOW RAISES NO
SUBSTANTIAL DUEPROCESS OR FIRST
AMENDMENT ISSUE

Even if the Petition did not suffer from such egregious
jurisdictional defects, the Petition must be denied for the
simple reason that the unpublished decision of the state
Court of Appeal presents no legal question that merits
review by this Court.

A. There is No Factual or Legal Basis for a Due
Process Claim

Petitioner’s first constitutional claim is that California
Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 violates the Due Process
Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment because the statute
is allegedly unduly vague. The Petition cites Hoffman
Estates, Inc. v. Flipside, Hoffman Estates, supra, 455
U.S. at 498, for the general proposition that unduly
vague laws may "trap the innocent by not providing fair
warning," may invite discriminatory enforcement, and
may impermissibly delegate "basic policy matters" to
individual officials. Pet. at 18. This, however, appears
to exhaust Petitioner’s familiarity with due process
principles. The Petition does not identify what specific
language in the statute supposedly invites the foregoing
abuse, nor does it cite a single case in which a private
attorney general statute, or any other fee-shifting statute,
has even been challenged on due process grounds, much
less successfully so. Moreover, the Petition fails to establish



21

that there is any substantial current of conflicting judicial
authority on the subject that requires resolution by this
Court, or that there is any public interest in undertaking
review of this issue in the particular context of this case
- an unpublished opinion of an intermediate appellate
court that cannot be cited or used as precedent even within
California itself, much less in any other jurisdiction.

On the merits, it should be readily apparent that -
far from being "vague, unintelligible, and wholly bereft
of clear standards for its application," Pet. at 16 - Code
of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 provides far more detailed
criteria for its application than most attorney fee statutes,
including the federal Civil Rights Attorney’s Fees Awards
Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C. § 1988. Code of Civil Procedure
§ 1021.5 specifies:

"Upon motion, a court may award attorneys’
fees to a successful party against one or more
opposing parties in any action which has
resulted in the enforcement of an important
right affecting the public interest if: (a) a
significant benefit, whether pecuniary or
nonpecuniary, has been conferred on the
general public or a large class of persons, (b)
the necessity and financial burden of private
enforcement.., are such as to make the award
appropriate, and (c) such fees should not in the
interest of justice be paid out of the recovery,
if any."

The "important right affecting the public interest,"
"significant benefit," and "necessity and financial burden"
criteria that govern fee awards under the statute have been



22

interpreted and applied in approximately 200 published
California appellate opinions over the past 35 years,
beginning with the California Supreme Court’s explication
of the statute in Woodland Hills Residents Assn. v. City
Council of Los Angeles, 23 Cal.3d 917, 593 P.2d 200 (1979).
The fee award criteria specified in Code of Civil Procedure
§ 1021.5 thus differ markedly from the type of open-ended
or completely subjective decisionmaking criteria that have
been found unconstitutionally vague in other contexts
under the Due Process Clause.

In addition, the Petition does not even attempt to
meaningfully discuss several other factors that bear on
the viability of his vagueness claim, including (1) that
attorney fee awards under Code of Civil Procedure
§ 1021.5 are made by judicial officers in full adversarial
proceedings in which the parties are almost invariably
represented by counsel; (2) that there is a vast body of
case law that elucidates the proper interpretation and
application of the statute in various contexts; (3) that the
statute is compensatory in nature, and is not a punitive
criminal statute or even one authorizing civil fines; and
(4) that in the case of an unsuccessful plaintiff such as
Petitioner, liability can arise only "[w]hen a party initiates
litigation that is determined to be detrimental to the public
interest." Adoption of Joshua S., 42 Cal.4th 945, 957, 174
P.3d 192,200 (2008). Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 is
thus a long, long way from the kind of statute that might
expose an innocent citizen to arbitrary punishment
without fair warning and without any realistic opportunity
to ascertain the meaning of the law.



23

B. The Decision Below Presents No Legitimate
First Amendment Issue

Petitioner’s First Amendment arguments fare no
better than his due process claim. As with its due process
argument, the Petition cites some general constitutional
homilies selected from a few classic First Amendment
cases, but does not point to a single decision from any
jurisdiction in which an attorney fee statute has been
found to be invalid under the First Amendment.

The Petition offers little in the way of meaningful
analysis beyond the regurgitation of various catchphrases
and buzzwords, none of which have any actual application
to the circumstances of this case. For example, Code of
Civil Procedure § 1021.5 plainly is not a content-based
statute subject to strict scrutiny. The statute does not, as
Petitioner erroneously suggests, single out cases involving
election controversies or political petitioning or speech
for special treatment. By its terms, the statute applies
equally to all types of litigation involving important rights
affecting the public interest, whether the rights at issue
concern politics, economics, protection of the environment,
employment or job status, government accountability, or
social equality. See, e.g., Graham v. DaimlerChrysler
Corp., 34 Cal.4th 553, 101 P.3d 140 (2005) [fees awarded
for vindication of consumer rights]; Center for Biological
Diversity v. County of San Bernardino, 188 Cal.App.4th
603, 611-612, 115 Cal.Rptr.3d 762 (2010) [fees awarded
in environmental litigation]; Otto v. Los Angeles Unified
School Dist., 106 Cal.App.4th 328, 130 Cal.Rptr.2d 512
(2003) [fees awarded in suit regarding police employees’
rights].



24

Nothing in the language of the statute or in its
application renders it suspect under the First Amendment.
Indeed, far from chilling or burdening the right of
petition, the very purpose of the statute is to promote,
not to discourage, legitimate public interest litigation -
whether the litigation is initiated by the fee claimant in
order to secure or vindicate important rights on behalf of
the public, or whether the burden of defending important
public rights against a baseless challenge was forced upon
the fee claimant by the plaintiff, as occurred in this case.
See generally Conservatorship of Whitley, supra, 50
Cal.4th at 1217-1220. Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5 is
also narrowly tailored to achieve this objective: First, a
plaintiff who in good faith merely asserts personal rights
and does nothing to challenge the general public interest
or the legitimate rights of large numbers of other citizens
cannot be held liable for an award of attorney fees under
the statute. Adoption of Joshua S., supra, 42 Cal.4th at
954-957; Wilson v. San Luis Obispo County Democratic
Central Committee, 192 Cal.App.4th 918, 924-925, 121
Cal.Rptr.3d 731 (2011). Likewise, the statute by its terms
requires the fee claimant to establish that the litigation
"transcend[ed] his personal interest" by safeguarding
or advancing important rights of the general public or
of a large class of persons, Woodland Hills Residents
Assn., supra, 23 Cal.3d at 935-941, and that enforcement
of the public interest was not merely "coincidental to the
attainment of... personal goals," Olney v. Municipal
Court, 133 Cal.App.3d 455, 464, 184 Cal.Rptr. 78 (1982).
Finally, the statute does not permit a governmental
agency to recover fees from a private individual. City
of Carmel-By-the-Sea v. Board of Supervisors, 183 Cal.
App.3d 229, 254-256,227 Cal.Rptr. 899 (1986). Litigation
commenced directly against a public agency - in other



25

words, most public interest litigation - cannot possibly
be deterred by the statute.

In sum, a private litigant faces potential liability for
attorney fees under Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5
only when he or she unsuccessfully challenges important
rights of fellow citizens. In these circumstances - where
a litigant forces the burden of defending important public
rights directly onto other members of the public - it
is more than fair, and certainly no affront to the First
Amendment, that the party who voluntarily chooses to
initiate and pursue the litigation accept the responsibility
for the costs incurred by other parties if the claims prove
to be unfounded.

The Petition’s First Amendment argument also ignores
the special nature of the judicial forum, and the potentially
drastic consequences that unfounded litigation can have
on innocent private defendants. Although the right to
petition includes access to the courts, the courtroom is
not equivalent to a public park or a city council chambers
for purposes of free speech or petitioning activity. States,
just like the federal government, may impose reasonable
rules and conditions upon access to this forum in order
to ensure fairness to all parties, as well as to preserve
order. Litigation - unlike most other forms of petitioning
activity- frequently imposes direct and potentially drastic
financial burdens on opposing parties, who also have a
First Amendment right to appear and defend themselves
with representation by legal counsel. In focusing solely on
his own self-created plight, Petitioner seems to forget that
his ill-advised attempt to nullify the democratic election
results and have the court declare him County Supervisor
in place of Respondent Farr imposed tremendous costs and



26

burdens on her. Granting carte-blanche to well-financed
losing candidates to overturn elections by dragging
their opponents into court to defend against baseless
election contests at great personal expense can have
precisely the "chilling effect" that Petitioner complains
of, deterring candidates from running altogether for
fear of being subjected to a ruinously expensive election
contest if the better-financed candidate loses. As this
Court has observed, "First Amendment rights may not
be used as the means or pretext for achieving ’substantive
evils’ which the Legislature has the power to control."
California Motor Transport Co. v. Trucking Unlimited,
404 U.S. 508, 515 (1972) (citation omitted).

As a final matter, contrary to the assertions in the
Petition, see, e.g., Pet. at 13, 19, an election contest is
not the only means by which an unsuccessful candidate
or other member of the public may discover and correct
electoral misconduct or election errors under California
law, or in most jurisdictions. Indeed, Petitioner admits that
in this very case, he requested and obtained a recount by
the County election officials, during the course of which
he was entitled under California law to examine "[a]ll
ballots, whether voted or not, and any other relevant
material." California Elections Code § 15630 (emphasis
added). Even without a recount, any citizen may report
and provide evidence of election fraud to the responsible
elections officials for appropriate action.6 Furthermore,

6. In the present case, Petitioner actually withheld his
purported evidence of election fraud from the County election
officials when they asked to see it, apparently because he thought
he would gain the tactical advantage of surprise in the election
contest if the information was first presented at that time. Clerk’s
Transcript, Vol. 4, pp. 1190:1-21, 1191:11-28. It turned out, of



27

Petitioner had resort to local and state law enforcement
officers charged with investigating election fraud. Rather
than pursue any of these avenues for ferreting out the
alleged election misconduct, Pappas instead chose to
go the route that would provide the greatest benefit to
him personally - a full adversarial courtroom election
contest - a route that, not so coincidentally, would also
necessarily impose tremendous costs on Respondent Farr,
who was not herself accused of any wrongdoing. The First
Amendment simply does not guarantee that available
avenues of redress will always be the cheapest ones
possible, nor that would-be litigants will always be able to
initiate lawsuits free of consideration of the potential costs
that their lawsuits impose on others. Having freely and
voluntarily chosen the judicial process in addition to his
other available remedies, Petitioner cannot now complain
that the statutory rules intended to level the playing field
for litigants in that forum are somehow unduly chilling of
his First Amendment rights.

course, that Petitioner’s claims of election fraud were entirely
bogus, and the County elections officials could have easily pointed
this out to him if he had only let them know what those claims
were, obviating the need for the election contest.



28

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the petition for a writ of
certiorari should be denied.

Date: May 3, 2013

Respectfully submitted,

PHILIP A. SEYMOUR
4894 Ogram Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105
(805) 692-9335

FREDRIC D. WOOCHER

Counsel of Record
STRUMWASSER ~ WOOCHER LLP

10940 Wilshire Boulevard,
Suite 2000
Los Angeles, CA 90024
(310) 576-1233
fwoocher@strumwooch.com

Counsel for Respondent



HToschi
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 5

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text



 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AGENDA LETTER 

 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

105 E. Anapamu Street, Suite 407 

Santa Barbara, CA  93101 

(805) 568-2240 

Agenda Number:  

 

Department Name: County Counsel 
Department No.: 013 
For Agenda Of: March 9, 2021 
Placement:   Administrative 
Estimated Tme:    
Continued Item: No 
If Yes, date from:  
Vote Required: Majority 

 

 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  
FROM: County Counsel Michael C. Ghizzoni 568-2950 
 Contact Info: Anne Rierson 568-2950 

SUBJECT:   Outside Counsel Contract  - Strumwasser & Woocher LLP 
 

County Counsel Concurrence  Auditor-Controller Concurrence  
As to form: Yes As to form: Yes     
Other Concurrence:   
Risk Management  
 

Recommended Actions:  
a) Approve and authorize the Chair to execute an Agreement for Professional Legal Services with 

Strumwasser & Woocher LLP, with a not-to-exceed amount of $200,000 and a term ending April 
30, 2022, for independent legal counsel to the County of Santa Barbara Citizens’ Independent 
Redistricting Commission; and 

b) Determine that the above actions are not a project under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15378(b)(5) of the CEQA Guidelines, because they consist of 
administrative activities of government that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes 
in the environment. 

Background:  
The County has a need to engage independent outside legal counsel for the County of Santa Barbara 
Citizens’ Independent Redistricting Commission (Commission).  On behalf of the Commission, County 
Counsel issued a Request for Proposals for such counsel and received four proposals.  The Commission 
unanimously selected Strumwasser & Woocher LLP as their legal counsel to recommend to the Board 
for approval of a contract.  The Agreement is for a not-to-exceed amount of $200,000 with a term 
ending April 30, 2022.  The attorneys primarily responsible for performing the legal services are Fredric 
Woocher and Andrea Sheridan Ordin. Among other experience, Mr. Woocher served as the lead 
attorney representing the County of Santa Barbara in the challenges to its 2001 redistricting plan, and 
Ms. Ordin was formerly the County Counsel for the County of Los Angeles.  In addition, the firm has 
arranged for Professor Justin Levitt of Loyola Law School, who has expertise in redistricting law, to 
serve as an advisor for this engagement. 



  
 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

 
Key Contract Risks:   

County Counsel was asked whether the Strumwasser & Woocher law firm has any disqualifying conflict 
from serving as Independent Legal Counsel for the Commission.  The Commission itself also considered 
that question, concerning the Strumwasser & Woocher law firm’s representation of former County 
Supervisor Doreen Farr in the litigation defense of an “election contest” during 2008 through 2013.  The 
County Counsel Office: 

  Reviewed the facts of the Strumwasser & Woocher law firm’s prior representation of former 
County Supervisor Doreen Farr.  We reviewed the relevant Superior Court orders and appellate 
actions, and concluded that:          
  

o  On October 14, 2010, the Court of Appeal affirmed the Superior Court’s denial of the 
election contest petition by Contestant Steven Pappas, and that ended further review of 
the merits of the election contest; and       
  

o  Between then and the end of that litigation on June 10, 2013 (when the United States 
Supreme Court denied further review), that litigation representation by the Strumwasser 
& Woocher law firm only involved the collection of attorneys’ fees from Contestant 
Steven Pappas;   

 Considered the interaction of the relevant provisions within County Code § 2-10.9A (Citizens’ 
independent redistricting commission), and California Elections Code § 23003;   
  

 Considered Elections Code § 23003(d)(1)(A), which provides that a person shall not be 
appointed to serve on an Independent Redistricting Commission if, within eight years preceding 
their application, they served as an officer, employee of, or paid consultant to a campaign 
committee or a candidate for elective office of the local jurisdiction;     
         

 Since Elections Code § 23003 does not define “paid consultant,” considered the definitions of 
that term within the Government Code provisions and California Code of Regulations provisions 
that implement the related area of California Constitution Article XXI’s “Citizens Redistricting 
Commission” for the redistricting of Senate, Assembly, Congressional, and Board of 
Equalization Districts;           
  

 Concluded that the Strumwasser & Woocher law firm does not have a disqualifying conflict 
from serving as Independent Legal Counsel, largely because providing litigation defense in 
election contest litigation is “non-political in nature,” as opposed to paid consulting services 
“related to conducting campaign activities or holding office.”  (2 Cal. Code. Regs., § 60821; 
California Bureau of State Audits “Memorandum Number 2,” dated July 31, 2009, p. 10.); and 
           

 Concluded that the Board of Supervisors therefore may exercise its discretion to approve or not 
approve this contract for Independent Legal Counsel. 

 



  
 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

Fiscal and Facilities Impacts:   
The Agreement is not-to-exceed $200,000 which is intended to cover the engagement through next 
fiscal year.  On November 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors through a 4/5-vote approved Budget 
Revision #BJE-000752.  That Budget Revision increased appropriations in the amount of $200,000 for 
redistricting implementation, including:  1) a Services Contract with National Demographics 
Corporation, with a not-to-exceed amount of $100,000; and 2) other implementation costs, including the 
recommended Legal Services Contract.  That increased appropriation posted on November 17, 2020 and 
is anticipated to provide sufficient funding for the recommended Legal Services Contract through the 
end of the present fiscal year. As part of the budget adoption for FY 2020-21, approximately $500,000 
was set aside for the redistricting process and available for appropriation if needed. Additionally, the 
recommended FY 2021-22 budget will include appropriations to continue the process. The appropriation 
status is continually monitored as actual costs to be incurred this fiscal year for services to the CIRC will 
be directly impacted by the number of meetings and outreach efforts the CIRC schedules and is not yet 
known.  
Special Instructions: Please forward a signed original to County Counsel and a signed copy to 
Assistant County Executive Officer Nancy Anderson. 
Attachments:  

A) Agreement for Professional Legal Services 
Authored by:   
Michael C. Ghizzoni, County Counsel 



































CM-010 
ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Name. Stallt Bar number. and adthss): 

FOR COIMT USE ONI. Y Harmeet K. Dhillon (SBN: 207873)/Mari< P. Meuser (SBN: 231335) 
Dhillon Law Group Inc. 
177 Post Street. Suite 700, San Francisco, CA 94108 

TELEPHONE NO.: 415-433-1700 FAX NO. {OpUonal): 415-520-6593 
ATTORNEY FOR (Niltne): Plaintiffs/Petitioners 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 
STREET ADDRESS: 11 00 Anacapa Street 
MAILINGAOORESS: 1100 Anacapa Street 

CITY ANDZIPCOOE: Santa Barbara 93121 
BRANCH NAME: South County 

CASE NAME: 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET Complex Case Designation CASE Nl.t.ABER: 

[!] Unlimited 0 Umlted D Counter 0 Joinder 
(Amount (Amount 
demanded demanded is 

Filed with first appearance by defendant JUDGE: 

exceeds $25,000) $25,000) (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.402) DEPT.: 

Items 1-6 below must be completed (see mstruct1ons on page 2). 

1. Check one box below for the case type that best describes this case: 
Auto Tort Cont111ct 

D Auto (22) D Breach of contract/warranty (06) 

D Uninsured motorist (46) D Rule 3. 740 collections (09) 

Other PIIPDIWD (Personallf1ury/Property D Other collections (09) 

Damage/Wrongful Death) Tort D Insurance coverage (18) 

D Asbestos (04) 
D Product liabiNty (24) D Other contract (37) 

Real Property 
D Medical malpractice (45) D Eminent domain/Inverse 
D Other PI/PDIWO (23) condemnation (14) 

Non-PIIPDIWD (Other) Tort D Wrongful eviction (33) 

D Business tort/unfair business practice (07) D Other real property (26) 

D Civil rights (08) Unlawful Detainer 

D Defamation (13) D Commercial (31) 

D Fraud (16) D Residential (32) 

D lntelectual property (19) D Drugs (38) 

D Professional negligence (25) Judicial Review 

D Other non.PIJPD/WO tort (35) D Asset forfeiture (05) 

Employment D Petition re: arbitration award (11) 

D Wrongful termination (36) m Writ of mandate (02) 

D Other employment (15) D Other judicial review (39) 

Provisionally Complex Civil Utlgatlon 
(Cal. Rules of Court, rules 3.400-3.403) 
D Antitrust/Trade regulation (03) 

D Construction defect (10) 

D Mass tort (40) 

D Securities litigation (28) 

D EnvironmentalfToxic tort (30) 
D Insurance coverage claims arising from the 

above listed provisionally complex case 
types (41) 

Enforcement of Judgment 

D Enforcement of judgment (20) 

Miscellaneous Civil Complaint 

D RIC0(27) 

0 Other complaint (not specified above) (42) 

Miscellaneous Civil Petition 

D Partnership and corporate governance (21) 

D Other petition (not specified above) (43) 

2. This case D is [!] is not complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court. If the case is complex, mark the 
factors requiring exceptional judicial management: 

a. D Large number of separately represented parties d. D Large number of witnesses 

b. D Extensive motion practice raising difficult or novel e. D Coordination with related actions pending in one or more 
issues that will be time-consuming to resolve courts in other counties, states, or countries. or in a federal 

c. D Substantial amount of documentary evidence court 
f. D Substantial posljudgment judicial supervision 

3. Remedies sought (check all that apply): a. D monetary b. w nonmonetary; declaratory or injunctive relief c. D punitive 
4. Number of causes of action (specify): 

5. This case D is [!] is not a class action suit. 

6. If there are any known related cases, file and serve a notice of related case. (You may use form CM-015.) 
Date: April 23, 2021 
Marl< P. Meuser 

PE OR PRINT NAME (SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY FOR PARTY) 

NOTICE 
• Plaintiff must file this cover sheet with the first paper filed in the action or proceeding (except small claims cases or cases filed 

under the Probate Code, Family Code, or Welfare and Institutions Code). (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.220.) Failure to file may result 
in sanctions. 

• File this cover sheet in addition to any cover sheet required by local court rule. 
• If this case is complex under rule 3.400 et seq. of the California Rules of Court, you must serve a copy of this cover sheet on all 

other parties to the action or proceeding. 
• Unless this is a collections case under rule 3.740 or a complex case, this cover sheet will be used for statistical purposes only. 

Form Adopled for Mandatory Use 
Jllllclal Crunci of Califorria CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET 

Pa 1 of 2 

Cal. Rules d Calli, rules 2.30, 3.220, 3.400-3.403, 3.74Q; 
Cal. Slardards d Ju<icial Admirislratbn, std. 3.10 

ELECTRONICALLY FILED
Superior Court of California
County of Santa Barbara
Darrel E. Parker, Executive Officer
4/23/2021 12:13 PM
By: Elizabeth Spann, Deputy

21CV01642

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text
Coalition of Labor, Agriculture, & Business et al. v. Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors et al.

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
Typewritten Text

HToschi
MPM



INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET CM-010 
To Plaintiffs and Others Filing Firat Papers. If you are filing a first paper (for example, a complaint) in a civil case, you must 
complete and file, along with your first paper, the Civil Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information will be used to compile 
statistics about the types and numbers of cases filed . You must complete items 1 through 6 on the sheet. In item 1. you must check 
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case fits both a general and a more specific type of case listed in item 1, 
check the more specific one. If the case has multiple causes of action, check the box that best Indicates the primary cause of action. 
To assist you In completing the sheet, examples of the cases that belong under each case type In item 1 are provided below. A cover 
sheet must be filed only with your Initial paper. Failure to file a cover sheet with the first paper filed In a civil case may subject a party, 
Its counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3.220 of the California Rules of Court. 
To Parties In Rule 3.740 Collections Cases. A "collections case" under rule 3.740 is defined as an action for recovery of money owed 
in a sum stated to be certain that Is not more than $25,000, exclusive of interest and attorney's fees, arising from a transaction In which 
property, services. or money was acquired on credit. A collections case does not include an action seeking the following: (1) tort 
damages, (2) punitive damages. (3) recovery of real property, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of 
attachment. The identification of a case as a rule 3. 7 40 collections case on this form means that it will be exempt from the general 
time-for-service requirements and case management rules, unless a defendant files a responsive pleading. A rule 3.740 collections 
case will be subject to the requirements for service and obtaining a judgment in rule 3. 7 40. 
To Parties In Complex Cases. In complex cases only, parties must also use the Civil Case Cover Sheet to designate whether the 
case Is complex. If a plaintiff believes the case is complex under rule 3.400 of the Callfomia Rules of Court, this must be indicated by 
completing the appropriate boxes in items 1 and 2. If a plaintiff designates a case as complex, the cover sheet must be served with the 
complaint on all parties to the action. A defendant may file and serve no later than the time of Its first appearance a joinder in the 
plaintiffs designation, a counter-designation that the case Is not complex, or. If the plaintiff has made no designation, a designation that 
the case Is complex. CASE TYPES .AND EXAMPLES 
Auto Tort Contrect 

Auto (22)-Personallnjury/Property Breach of Contract/Warranty (06) 
Damage/Wrongfu Death Breach of Rental/Lease 

Uninsured Motorist (46) (if the Contract (not unlawful detainer 
case involves., uninsured or wrongful evlctlon) 
motorist claim subject to Contract~~~_>' arranty Breach-Se.ller 
arbitration check this item Plaintiff (not fraud or negllf/ence) 
instead ofAtio) Negligent Breach of Contract/ 

Other PIIPDIWD (Peraonallnjury/ Warranty 
Property Damage/Wrongful Death) Other Breach of Contract/Warranty 
Tort Collections (e.g., money owed, open 

Asbestos (04) book accounts) (09) 
Asbestos Property Damage Collection Case-Seller Plaintiff 
Asbestos Personal Injury/ Other Promissory Note/Collections 

Wrongful Death Case 
Product LiabYity (not asbestos or Insurance Coverage (not provisionaRy 

toxic/environmental) (24) complex) (18) 
Medical Malpractice (45) Auto Subrogation 

Medical Malpractice- Other Coverage 
Physicians & Surgeons Other Contract (37) 

Other Professional Health Care Contractual Fraud 
Malpractice Other Contract Dispute 

Other PIIPD/WD (23) Real P~operty . 
Premises UabMity (e.g., slip Em1nent Domain/Inverse 

and fall) Condemnation (14) 
Intentional Bodily lnjury/PD/WD Wrongful Eviction (33) 

(e.g .. assault. vandalism) Other Real Property (e.g., quiet Iitle) (26) 
Intentional Infliction of Writ of Possession of Real Property 

Emotional Distress Mortgage Foreclosure 
NegNgentlnflk:tion of Quiet Title 

Emotional Distress Other Real Property (not eminent 
Other PIIPDIWD domain, landlord/tenant, or 

Non.PIIPDfND (Other) Tort foreclosure) 
Business Tori/Urtalr Business Unlawful Detelner 

Practice (07) Commercial (31) 
CivY Rights (e.g .. discrimination. Residential (32) . 

false arrest) (not civil Drugs (38) (If the case mvolves /Hegel 
harassment) (08) drugs, check this Item; otherwise, . 

Defamation (e.g., slander. libel) report as Commercial or Residential) 
(13) Judicial Review 

Fraud (16) As~t Forfeiture. (05~ 
Intellectual Property (19) PetitiOn Re: ArbitratiOn Award ( 11) 
Professional NegWgence (25) Writ of Mandate (02) 

Legal Malpractice Writ-Administrative Mandamus 
Other Professional Malpractice Writ- Mandamus on Limited Court 

(not medical or legs/) case Matter 
Other Non-PIIPD/WD Tort (35) Writ-Other Llmite.cJ Court Case 

Employment Review 
Wrongful Termination (36) Other Judicial Review (39) 
Other Employment (15) Review of Health Officer Order 

Notice of AP.peei-Labor 
Commissioner Appeals 

CM.()10 (Rev. July 1. 2007) 

Provlalonllly Complex Civil Lltlgetlon (Cal. 
Rulea ol Court Rulea 3.400-3.403) 

AntltrusVTrade Reguation (03) 
Construction Defect (1 0) 
Claims Involving Mass Tort (40) 
Securities Litigation (28) 
Environmental/Toxic Tort (30) 
Insurance Coverage Claims 

(arising from provisionaRy complex 
case type listed above) (41) 

Enforcement of Judgment 
Enforcement of Judgment (20) 

Abstract of Judgment (Out of 
County) 

Confession of Judgment (non
domestic relations) 

Sister State Judgment 
Administrative Agency Award 

(not 111paid taxes) 
Petition/Certification of Entry of 

Judgment on Unpaid Taxes 
Other Enforcement of Judgment 

Case 
Mllcellaneoua Civil Complaint 

RICO (27) 
Other Complairt (not specified 

above) (42) 
Declaratory Relief Only 
Injunctive Relief Only (non-

herassment) 
Mechanics Lien 
Other Commercial Complaint 

case (non-tort/non-complex) 
Other Civil Complaint 

(non-tort/non-complex) 
Mllcellaneoua Civil Petition 

Partnership and Corporate 
Governance (21) 

Other Petition (not specified 
above) (43) 
Civil Harassment 
Workplace Violence 
Elder/Dependent Adult 

Abuse 
Election Contest 
Petition for Name Change 
Petition for Relief From Late 

Claim 
Other CivH Petition 

P1ge 2 of 2 

I! Cle• this form I 



Print Form I ; Clear Form 
ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (NAME AND ADDRESS): TELEPHONE NO.: 

FOR COURT USE ONLY Harmeet K. Dhillon (SBN: 207873)/Mark P. Meuser (SBN: 231335) 
Dhillon Law Group Inc. 
1n Post Street. Suite 700, San Francisco, CA 94108 

ATTORNEY FOR (NAME): Plaintiff The Coalition of Labor, Agriculture & Business 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 

!81 Santa Barbara-Anacapa 0 Santa Maria-Cook 0 Lompoc Division 
11 00 Anacapa Street 312-C East Cook Street 115 Civic Center Plaza 

Santa Barbara, CA 93101 Santa Maria, CA 93454 Lompoc, CA 93436 

PLAIN11FF: The Coalition of Labor, Agriculture, & Business, et al. 

DEFENDANT: Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors, et al. 

CASE NUMBER: 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM 21CV01642 

Santa Barbara County Superior Court Local Rule, rule 201 divides Santa Barbara County geographically into two 
separate regions referred to as "South County" and "North County," the boundaries of which are more particularly 
defined in rule 201. "South County" includes the cities of Carpinteria, Santa Barbara, and Goleta; "North County" 
includes the cities of Santa Maria, Lompoc, Buellton and Solvang. A map depicting this geographical division Is 
contained in Appendix 1 to the local rules. 

Local Rule 203 provides: "When, under California law, 'North County' would be a 'proper county' for venue purposes, 
all filings for such matters shall be in the appropriate division of the Clerk's office in North County. All other filings 
shall be made in the Clerk's office in the appropriate division of the Court in South County. The title of the Court 
required to be placed on the first page of documernts pursuant to CRC 2.111 includes the name of the appropriate 
Court division." 

A plaintiff filing a new complaint or petition is requirred by Local Rule 1310 to complete and file this Civil Case Cover 
Sheet Addendum to state the basis for filing in North County or South County. 

The undersigned represents to the Court: 

This action is filed in 0 North County 181 South County because venue is proper in this region for the following 
reason(s): 

181 A defendant resides or has its principal place of business in this region at: 

105 East Anapamu Street, Santa Barbara. CA 93101 

0 The personal injury, damage to property, or breach of contract that is claimed in the complaint occurred in this 
region at ______________________________________________________________________ _ 

0 There is a related case filed with the court in this region (e.g., the related personal injury action to a petition to 

transfer structured settlement payments) Pdentify case, including case number] : -----------------------

0 Venue Is otherwise proper In this region because [explain]: -----------------------------------

Dated: 412312021 

Form Adopted br Mandatory Use 
Santa Barbara Superior Court 

SC-2069 (New July 20181 

Signature of Plaintiff or Plaintiff's Counsel 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM 
Print Form J; Clear Form 

ELECTRONICALLY FILED
Superior Court of California
County of Santa Barbara
Darrel E. Parker, Executive Officer
4/23/2021 12:13 PM
By: Elizabeth Spann, Deputy

HToschi
MPM



SUMMONS 
(CITACION JUDICIAL) 

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: 
(AVISO AL DEMAN DADO): 
SANTA BARBARA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS et al. 

(SEE ATIACHMENT ONE FOR ADDITIONAL PARTIES) 

YOU ARE BEING SUE.D BY PLAINTIFF: 
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE}: 
THE COALITION OF LABOR, AGRICULTURE, & BUSINESS OF SANTA BARBARA COUNTY, a 
Califomia non-profit organization et al. (SEE ATIACHMENT TWO FOR ADDITIONAL PARTIES) 

SUM-100 

FOR COURT USE ONLY 
(SOLD PARA USODELA CORTE) 

NOTICEI You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond wittin 30 days. Read the information 
below. 

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a written response at this court and have a copy 
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response must be in proper legal form if you want the court to hear your 
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information at the California Courts 
Online Self-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/se/fhelp) , your county law library, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask the 
court clerk for a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property may 
be taken without further warning from the court. 

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an attorney right away. If you do not know an attorney, you may want to call an attorney 
referral service. If you cannot afford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal servicas from a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate 
these nonprofit groups at the California Legal Services Web site (www.lawhelpcallfomia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center 
(www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp). or by contacting your local court or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and 
costs on any settlement or arbitration award of$10.000 or more in .a civil case. The court's lien must be paid before the court will dismiss the case. 
tAVISOf Lo han demandado. Sino reSPonde dentro de 30 dlas, la corte puede decidir en su contra sin escuchar su versiOn. Leala informaciOn a 
continuaci6n. 

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDAR/0 despues de que le entreguen esta citaci6n y papeles /ega/as pare presertar una respuesta por escrito en esta 
corte y hacer que se entregue una copia Bl dllmandante. Una carts o una 1/amada telef6nica no to protegen. Su respuesta por escrito Ilene que ester 
en forma to /ega/ COIT9Cto si de sea que procesen su caso en Ia corte. Es poslble que hays un formula rio que ustad pueda ussr pare su raspuesta. 
Puede encontrer estos formuiarios de Ia corte y mas informac/6n e.n el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California (www.sucorte.ca.gov). en Ia 
blblioteca de /eyes d9 su condado o en ia corte que /e quede mas ceres. Sl no puede pagar Ia cuota de presenteci6n, pida at secretarlo de Ia corte que 
/e de un formuiario de exenci6n de pago de cuotas. Si no presents su respuesta a tlempo. puede perder el caso por incunp/imiento y ia corte le podra 
qultar su sue/do. dinero y b/enes sin mas advertencia. 

Hay otros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que/lame a un abogado /nmedlatamente. Sl no conoce a un abogado. puede /lamar a un servlclo de 
remisi6n a abogados. Sino puede pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los reqlisitos para obtener servicios legales gretuitos de un 
programs de servk/os legales sin fines de lucro. Puede encontrer estos grupos sin fines de /ucro en e/ sitio web de Califomla Legal Services, 
(www.iawhelpcalifomia.org), en el Centro de Ayuda de/as Cortes de Califomia, (www.sucorte.ca.gov) o poniendose en contacto con ia corte o el 
co/agio d9 abogados locales. A VI SO: Por ley, Ia corte tiene derecho a reclamar las cuotas y los costos exentos por imponer un gravtMnen sobre 
cualqlier recuperaci6n de $10,000 6 mas d9 valor reclbida mediante un acuerdo o una concesi6n de arbitTBje en un caso de dllrecho civil. Tiene que 
pagar el gravamen de ia corte artes de que ia corte pueda desechar e/ caso. 

The name and address of the court Is: CASE NUMBER: (Numero del Csso): 
(EI nombre y direcci6n de Ia corte es): Superior Court of Santa Barbara (South County) 21CV01642 
1100 Anacapa Street '---------------' 
Santa Barbara. CA 93121-1107 

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiff's attorney, or plaintiff without an attomey, is: (EI nombre, Is direcci6n y el numero 
de teiBfono del abogado del demandante, o del demandsnte que no tiene abogado, es): 

Mark P. Meuser; Dhillon Law Group Inc., 177 Post Street, Suite 700, San Francisco. CA 94108; 415-433-1700 

DATE: Clerk, by 
(Fecha) (Secretario) 
(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service o f Summons (form POS-010).) 

, Deputy 
(Adjunto) 

(Para prueba de entrega de esta citati6n use el formulsrio Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)). 

ISEAL) 
NOnCE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served 

1. D as an individual defendant. 

2. D as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specify): 

Fom> Adopled for Mandalay Use 
JLC!Icial Crund of Califonia 
S~-100 (Rev. July 1, 2009) 

3. D on behalf of (specify): 

under: D CCP 416. 1 0 (corporation) 

D CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) 

D CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) 

D other (specify): 
4. D by personal delivery on (date): 

SUMMONS 

.......... ,.. .... ~ ...... 

D CCP 416.60 (minor) 

D CCP 416.70 (conservatee) 

D CCP 416.90 (authorized person) 

Pa .. 1 of 1 

Code of Civt Procedure §§ 4 12.20, 465 
www.cot.rts.ca.gov 

[cae. ihls'fomil 

ELECTRONICALLY FILED
Superior Court of California
County of Santa Barbara

Darrel E. Parker, Executive Officer
4/23/2021 2:10 PM
By: Elizabeth Spann, Deputy

/s/ Elizabeth Spann4/23/2021



SHORT TITLE: 

Coalition of Labor, Business, & Agriculture et at. v. Santa Barbara County Board et at. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 

CASE NlAlBER: 

21CV01642 

SUM-200(A 

-+ This form may be used as an attachment to any summons if space does not permit the listing of all parties on the summons. 

-+ If this attachment is used, insert the following statement in the plaintiff or defendant box on the summons: "Additional Parties 
Attachment form is attached. • 

List additional parties (Check only one box. Use a separate page for each type of party.): 

D Plaintiff [!] Defendant 0 Cross-Complainant 0 Cross-Defendant 

ADDITIONAL RESPONDENTS/DEFENDANTS: 

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA CITIZENS' INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION, FREDERIC D. WOOCHER, an 
Individual; STUMWASSER & WOOCHER, LLP, a 
California Business Organization 

Fonn Adopled for Mandalory Use 
Judicial Councl of California 

SUM·200(A) (Rev. January 1, 2007) 

ADDITIONAL PARTIES ATTACHMENT 
Attachment to Summons 

I Print this form II Save this form l 

Page _1_ of 2 

P• 1of1 

I c ... this tonn I 



SHORT TITLE: 

Coalition of Labor, Business, & Agriculture et al. v. Santa Barbara County Board et al. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 

CASE NI.HBER: 

21CV01642 

SUM-200(A 

~This form may be used as an attachment to any summons if space does not permit the listing of all parties on the summons. 

~ If this attachment is used, insert the following statement in the plaintiff or defendant box on the summons: • Additional Parties 
Attachment form is attached. • 

List additional parties (Check only one box. Use a separate page for each type of party.): 

[!] Plaintiff D Defendant D Cross-Complainant D Cross-Defendant 

ADDITIONAL PLAINTIFFS/PETITIONERS: 

ROY REED, an individual; MIKE BROWN, an individual; and ALICE PATINO, an individual 

ADDITIONAL PARTIES ATTACHMENT 
Attachment to Summons 

I Print this form II Save this form I 

Page 2 of 2 

P• 1 of 1 

I c ........ rorm I 


	00 Agenda
	05 Minutes 20210512
	05 Minutes 20210519
	07 Candidates Interview Schedule
	07 Candidate Interview Questions
	07 Candidate Applications
	Alvarez_Lupe
	Beyerle_Albert
	Brady_Mike

	11 COLAB v. Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors et al


{"type":"Imported Other","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}



{"type":"Imported Other","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}


	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_2: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_3: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_4: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_5: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_6: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_7: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_8: 
	9 What is your age 52: 
	Are you registered to vote In the County of Santa Barbara Yes 0No: 
	Have you changed your registered political party affillatlon within the past 5 year 0Yes  No: 
	Have you voled in Santa Barbara County In at leaat one of the IHI three 11 t wld electlon1 Yes DNo: 
	1 have read and comply with the provisions of lectlons Cod  23003c d and t Yes DNo: 
	By signing below I declare under penalty of perjury that the answers provided In this application are true to the best: 
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	Middle: 
	undefined_4: 
	Department: 
	Row1: 
	j: 
	undefined_5: 
	i LJ IVHITE not of Hispanic Origin All persons having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe North Nca o  Iii 1idCla: 
	undefined_6: 
	9 What is your age 66: 
	D Decline to state: 
	fill_6: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_9: 
	I have read and comply with the provisions of Elections Code  23003c d and e   No LYPs: 
	undefined_10: 
	t3y sirJning beiow i declare under penalty of perjury that the answers provided in this application are trn tc the best: 
	Middle_2: 
	Street: 
	Department_2: 
	9 What is your age 73: 
	10 EXPERIENCE Please explain why you are interested in serving and what experience you bring to the Commission Attach an additional page if necessary Ive been a resident of this county since the late 1960s I graduated from UCSB with a BA and received a Masters Degree in Political Science from SFVSC aka Cal State Northridge I have lived in the Cities of Santa Barbara and Solvang and in the County When living in Solvang I was appointed to its first Architectural Board of Review was elected Chairperson and was integral in drafting the citys Architectural Guidelines I have been a member of the Santa Ynez Valley Board of Realtors served on the Board was President of the Board and Chaired the Multiple Listing Service Committee I served on the Board of the Solvang Theaterfest and as Chairman I was a Board Member for the Solvang Library I am a licensed California real estate broker that has represented and sold hundreds of properties in the County including ranches land estates houses and commercial properties My profession is dependent on knowing the areas of this County and their unique features and populations This knowledge provides a perspective on the importance of drawing district lines that account for population areas and geography I know this County Ive lived in this County My son and grandchildren live here: 
	11 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION Give any other relevant information pertaining to your qualifications and experience that bear on your application for the Commission: 
	Are you registered to vote in the County of Santa Barbara Yes No: 
	Have you changed your registered political party affiliation within the past 5 years OYes No: 
	Have you voted in Santa Barbara County in at least one of the last three statewide elections Yes D No: 
	I have read and comply with the provisions of Elections Code 23003c d and e Yes DNo: 
	By signing below I declare under penalty of perjury that the answers provided in this application are true to the best: 
	Verified Petition for Writ of Mandamus: 
	Case No: 
	Mark P Meuser: 
	James Andrew Caldwell for Petitioner Coalition of: 
	Roy Reed: 
	Mike Brown: 
	Alice Patino: 
	undefined_11: 
	CO County Executive Office 105 E Anapamu Street Suite 406 Santa Barbara CA 93101_9: 
	upreme atnurt nf tlf e lllnite: 
	undefined_12: 
	SECOND APPELLATE DISTRICT D1v1sION Six: 
	BRIEF IN OPPOSITION: 
	May32013: 
	3 In response to the Petition for Rehearing the Court of: 
	4 Compare Webb v Webb 451 US 493 496497 1981 It is: 
	undefined_13: 
	undefined_14: 
	6 In the present case Petitioner actually withheld his: 
	course that Petitioners claims of election fraud were entirely: 
	County of Santa Barbara Page 1: 
	li07ioo41: 
	By: 
	Date: 
	By_2: 
	By_3: 
	By_4: 
	undefined_15: 
	I Print this form l I Save this form I: 
	CASE NIMBER 21CV01642: 
	CASE NlMBER 21CV01642: 
	Return to Agenda: 


